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© This annual report covers
the Financial and Non-
Financial achievements of
Nepal Infrastructure Bank
Limited (NIFRA) for review
period 2020-2021.
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MOMENTUM OF DEVELOPMENT
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Despite the adverse scenario in the financial
market and the overall economy of the country
caused by COVID - 19 pandemic, Nepal
Infrastructure Bank (NIFRA) continued to progress
as planned in line with our own strategic directions
and in alignment with the policy and programmes
of Nepal Government, for raising resources and
deploying them in infrastructure projects developed
and operated in participation of both the public and
private sectors. We have been marching ahead
since our inception with a robust commitment of
becoming a strong financial partner for achieving
“economic prosperity of the nation through
infrastructure development in the next decade”,
embracing best practices of other nations which
have risen from the background similar to ours
with the help of active and leading participation of
their respective infrastructure development banks
as an institution specialized for their infrastructure

development.
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With the regulatory mandate to focus all our
activities only in infrastructure development, we
have been operating for last three years differently
than the other existing banks and financial
institutions, as the nation’s first infrastructure
development bank established with equity
participation of Nepal Government, commercial
banks, insurance companies, other institutional
entities and individuals. The Bank, having been
established in the Public and Private Partnership
(PPP) model itself, has been able to approve loans
and investments of more than NPR 24 billion in a
short span of time while maintaining trust of more
than 1.4 million Respected Shareholders. The Bank
has adopted a five year business plan covering

various programmes such as ensuring financial

reach for development of infrastructure projects,
raising financial resources and developing structure
for feasibility studies and financial closures of
infrastructure projects. In line with this business plan,
the Bank has prioritized activities for raising large
sized and long term stable funds required for mega
projects of social and economic importance such
as storage hydroelectricity projects, transmission
lines, international airports, projects related to
health, tourism, education, SEZ, smart cities etc
and investing such funds through Commercial
Blending approaches adopting models of Hybrid
Annuity Model (HAM), Viability Gap Funding (VGF)
and Asset Monetization.
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To be the nodal financial institution of the nation for
infrastructure development.

®
Mission
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B To accelerate investment in infrastructure.
m To bridge the financial gap for unlocking development
potential.

I0TAifAes faRm
Strategic Direction
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We are committed to play the role of strong financial partnerin
the infrastructure to be built over the next decade.

FROM LEFT TO RIGHT
BOTTOM: MR. ANUJ AGARWAL (CHAIRMAN), MR. CHANDRA PRASAD DHAKAL (DIRECTOR)
TOP: MR. KEDARNATH SHARMA (DIRECTOR), MR. LALMANI JOSHI (DIRECTOR), MR. SHANKAR PRASAD ADHIKARI (DIRECTOR)
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Mr. ANUJ AGARWAL
CHAIRMAN (MBA)

MR. KEDARNATH
SHARMA
DIRECTOR (MA, LLM)
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Directors' Profiles
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Mr. Anuj Agarwal represents in the Bank's Board
from 'Vishal Group'. He is one of Nepal’'s most
dynamic entrepreneurs and thought leaders.
As a serial entrepreneur he has helped found
companies across various domains including
Infrastructure, Industry, Power, Education and
Retail.

Highly passionate about the socio-economic
potential of Nepal, Mr. Agarwal has spent
decades working across various institutions in
various capacities, including as Vice President
of CNI, Founder Member of EO, YPO, and
been invited as an expert consultant across
various Government, NGO, Bilateral and other
frameworks. Mr. Agarwal graduated in 1996 with

an MBA from Vanderbilt University.

Mr. Kedarnath Sharma represents in the Bank's
Board from Ministry of Finance (MoF). He is Joint
Secretary of MoF, Government of Nepal (GoN).
He is presently heading Administration Division
of the Ministry as a Division Head. Mr. Sharma
has contributed leadership role in different
capacities in his civil service career. Mr. Sharma
holds a Master's degree in Political Science as
well as Master's degree in Law from Tribhuwan
University. He has good competencies in the
areas of administration, management and

economics affairs.



Mr. CHANDRA PRASAD
DHAKAL
DIRECTOR (B.COM)

Mr. LALMANI JOSHI
DIRECTOR (MBA)

MR. SHANKAR
PRASAD ADHIKARI
DIRECTOR (MBA)
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Mr. Chandra Prasad Dhakal represents in
the Bank's Board from IME Ltd. Mr. Dhakal
is Chairman of “IME Group” Nepal. He is a
successful businessman of the country and
represents several organisations in different
capacities. IME Group is renowned business
house particularly known for Remittance,
Banking, Insurance, Hospitality, Hydropower,
Automobiles, Infrastructure, Cable Car etc. in
Nepal. Presently, he is the Chairman of Global
IME Bank Ltd., IME Group and Chandragiri
Hills Ltd. He is also senior Vice President of
Federation of Nepalese Chambers of Commerce
and Industry (FNCCI) as well as Honorary Consul
of the Republic of Indonesia for Nepal. Mr. Dhakal

holds Bachelor's degree in Commerce.

Mr. Lalmani Joshi represents in the Bank's
Board from Emerging Nepal Ltd. He is retired
Secretary of Government of Nepal (GoN).
During his service period of more than thirty-five
years with GoN, Mr. Joshi had served the
government in different capacities. Presently,
he is the Chairman of Emerging Nepal Ltd. In
the past, Mr. Joshi had served in the Board of
Himalayan Bank Limited, NABIL Bank Ltd. and
Nepal Industrial Development Corporation as
a Director. Mr. Joshi holds Master's degree in

Business Administration.

Mr. Shankar Prasad Adhikari represents in the
Bank's Board as an Independent Director. He is
retired Secretary of Government of Nepal (GoN).
During his service period of more than thirty years
with GoN, Mr. Adhikari served the government
in different capacities. In the past, Mr. Adhikari
had served as Chairman/Board Member in
various renowned Government entities, Council
and Companies including Nepal Rastra Bank.
Mr. Adhikari holds Master's degree in Business

Administration.



ANUJ AGARWAL
CHAIRMAN
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Message from Chairman, Mr. Anuj Agarwal

AU T HEATagR a fauw srfafasges

AT AU FIHMCAR b {fAShl |l aifieh TTEROT ST
T YT G fag TRvTHTaT SHTE T SeTs fag WaeRmT Sufeera
ST SRREHT HETwTEes, Sl oo &fier T ey o
ITET TEINEFSY TS ShAT HRI HHARGE AT ITIT THut
TRIMTEEETs Hodlaish Alfd T B ST awee gifds @ e
FRIETE T T A8 |

SehehT TTUHT SIS TE  TUTeT TR, 3T HeTer, STl U ek mard
TRt fehretaTe wTd fReR ARG T SRREHT FeTgHTaREet
ERIITHT IR fovamasd %l @ET G it IRREHIEE
Ron! fadia GEaTee HEdehl Ueh ol Sehohl S9HT ATST I9 siohed ST
FFHTTae FhRaTshaTIee Sae T gerwdr quT fagiar gied et |
Sk T STUTT AT, <6 T ST Teg g TFY0T U HRTgTaeeelTs
I el AT F. oL/ oc W BHA Tehl TIE ITAHIEE J9 &I
HThd SRR TS UTSaT TRaTf-ad HeS[E Tl G |

Dear valued shareholders, distinguished representative from
Ministry of Finance, distinguished authorities from various regulatory
bodies, external auditors of the Bank, and all the employees and
members of Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited family, | Anuj Agrawal,
would like to extend my heartfelt welcome to each one of you for your
gracious presence in this memorable occasion of the 3 Annual General
Meeting of Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited.

Due to continuous support and guidance of Ministry of Finance, Nepal
Rastra Bank and other regulatory authorities and utmost trust of the
valued Shareholders since the inception, the Bank has today achieved
the expertise and capacity to conduct its business activities as a strong
bank among Banks and Financial Institutions with nation’s largest number
of shareholders. | feel immense pride in sharing with you NIFRA’s major
achievements during FY 2020-21 in this Annual General Meeting with
all the stakeholders who extend immense support and interest and have
expectations from NIFRA.
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Activities done and Experiences gained during
Review Period

We fully understand the responsibilities NIFRA needs to bear
as an only infrastructure development bank, at a time when
Nepal is moving ahead towards the goal of achieving economic
prosperity through infrastructure development. Since Financial
Year 2019-20, we have taken on several long term initiatives
like raising large sized long term stable funds from domestic
and foreign capital markets through Infra-Bond, Energy
Bond, Green Bond, participating in formulation of far reaching
policies, acts and modalities required for financing socially
important infrastructure projects through ‘Commercial Blending’
approach by using various models like Hybrid Annuity Model
(HAM), Viability Gap Funding (VGF), Asset Monetization and
providing inputs for amendment of Bylaws related to Hedging
which is essential for attracting foreign investments.

NIFRA can meet the expectations of Nepal Government,
regulators, private sector and other stakeholders only when
it aligns its activities with the policies and programs that the
Government has taken for nation’s infrastructure development.
Understanding this, we have been wholeheartedly pursuing
our efforts accordingly in order to meet such expectations. As
efforts like these take long duration and resources, we have
been well managing the budget and human resources required
for the same. A close look into the background and practices
of infrastructure development banks in different other nations
reveals that the success of such banks are defined not only
by their financial indictors but also by their contribution on the
infrastructure sector of their country. Accordingly, NIFRA has
also prioritized the financing of large infrastructure projects
which are socially significant and economically strategic. In
this regard, NIFRA is grateful to all its Respected Shareholders
who have invested in NIFRA for making long term contribution
in country’s infrastructure rather than for short and mid - term
returns only. This is reflected by the regular growth in Bank’s
financial indicators, investment portfolio and activities. During
FY 2020/21, NIFRA became the Bank established under
PPP modality with largest paid up capital after successfully
completing the issuance of Initial Public Offering (IPO) of NPR
8 Billion to the general public.

In order to play a larger role in infrastructure development
in co-operation with all the three layers of the Government,
related Ministries and Departments, Development Partners,
International Banks and Financial Institutions and Multilateral
Development Organizations, NIFRA has partnered with
organizations like International Finance Corporation (IFC),
Asian Development Bank (ADB), Foreign, Commonwealth and
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Development Office (FCDO), World Bank and GuarantCo
in areas like building the Bank’s capacity, co-financing
projects and raising resources from international capital

markets.

The Bank has invested a considerable time and resources
during the review period in building capacity of human
resource, steering Bank’s business activities towards
the right course and in developing and implementing all
policies and guidelines required to ensure highest level
of governance and compliance. We believe the Bank has
been able to establish a strong presence among all its
stakeholders by adopting these initiatives.

Financial Performance of FY 2020/21 and Goals
of 2021/22

Despite the adverse situation caused by COVID-19
pandemic spread across the world, the Bank has increased
its approved loans by around 300% from NPR 6 billion of
previous year to NPR 17.7 billion by the end of the review
period. Following the end of the review period, the Bank
has further approved additional loans of NPR 5.13 billion
to 4 infrastructure projects. Though the construction and
operations of some projects approved and financed by
NIFRA were affected by COVID-19 to some extent, all
the loans have been regular, in order and under ‘Pass’
category.

For FY 2021/22, the Bank has aimed to continue the
initiatives of issuing energy and infra bonds of NPR 10
billion for institutional investors of domestic capital market
and Green Bond of USD 30 million in foreign capital
market for raising investable financial resources.

Finally,

| would like to assure you that the Bank shall make all
possible efforts in meeting its goals and to expand its
business activities in the days to come and | firmly believe
we shall continue to receive your support and guidance in
our journey. | thank you all once again for your gracious

presence in this occasion.
Thank You all.
Anuj Agarwal

Chairman,

Board of Directors
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Respected Shareholders,
Thanking you all for granting your gracious presence in the
3 Annual General Meeting of Nepal Infrastructure Bank
Limited, | would like to extend my heartfelt welcome to each
one of you in this occasion

| feel pleasure in sharing with you that in a very short period
of time, NIFRA now is being recognized as one of the strong
banks having largest shareholders. This has been possible
only due to continuous support, love and trust of our valued
shareholders, valuable guidance and support of Ministry of
Finance, Nepal Rastra Bank and other regulatory authorities.
| feel proud to share the leading achievements of the bank in
FY 2020-21 to you all through this Annual General Meeting.

The financial year 2020/21 has been a significant strategic
year for us as we completed issuance of Initial Public
Offering (IPO) of 40% of our issued capital to the general
public during the year. | request your permission to present
this annual report of the FY 2020/21 on behalf of the Board
of Directors of the Bank, prepared in line with the Company
Act 2063, Bank and Financial Institutions Act 2073 and
all other relevant laws, policies and guidelines, reviewing
overall financial activities of the Bank conducted during FY
2020/21 including major highlights of the progresses and
achievements gained during the period.

@T\IIF
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(A) National and International Economic Scenario
Before | discuss the achievements and progresses made
by the Bank in FY 2020/21, its major business activities
conducted till date and its future plans, | would like to briefly
touch upon the global and domestic economic outlook
especially in COVID-19 in context. The pandemic has
badly impacted the global economy resulting the adverse
and challenging economic indicators. The economies,
including us, now have to channelize more INFRA capital
to rescue socio-economic activities through development
of sustainable infrastructures.

1. Global Economic Outlook

World economy which had contracted by 3.2 percent
in 2020 is estimated by International Monetary Fund
(IMF) to expand by 6.0 percent in 2021. World economy
had expanded by 2.8 percent in 2019. The Advanced
economies which had contracted by 4.6 percent in 2020 is
estimated to expand by 5.6 percent in 2021. Similarly, the
emerging and developing economies that had contracted
by 2.1 percent in 2020 are projected to expand by 6.3
percent in 2021. The growth rate of advanced economy
was 1.6 percent and that of emerging and developing

economies was 3.7 percent in 2019.
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Among our neighboring countries, Chinese economy
was estimated by IMF to have expanded by 6 percent in
2019 whereas the same was estimated to expand by 2.3
percent in 2020. Similarly, Indian economy had expanded
by 4 percent in 2019 whereas the same contracted by
7.3 percent in 2020. Growth rates of Chinese and Indian
economy in 2021 are estimated to be 8.1 percent and 9.5
percent respectively. The IMF has estimated inflation in
the developed economies to be at 0.7 percent in 2020
which is further projected to be at 2.4 percent in 2021.
Inflation in the emerging and developing economies are
projected to be at 5.4 percent in 2021 compared to 5.1
percent in 2020.

Global trade volume contracted by 8.3 percent in 2020.
It is projected to grow by 9.7 percent in 2021. The price
of petroleum products dropped by 32.7 percent in 2020
which is projected to increase by 56.6 percent in 2021.
Revenue mobilization in most of the countries has been
affected by the COVID-19. On the other hand, the increase
in public expenditure has raised the ratio of public debt
to gross domestic product globally. Such a ratio reached
97.3 percent in 2020 compared to 83.7 percent in 2019.

(Source: Monetary Policy of Nepal for 2020/21 published
by Nepal Rastra Bank)

2. Domestic Economic Situation

The Central Bureau of Statistics (CBS) has estimated
the Nepalese economy to grow by 4.01 percent in
2020/21 compared to the contraction of 2.09 percent in
2019/20. However, maintaining this level of growth rate is
challenging due to the second wave of the pandemic that
reappeared in the fourth quarter of the year. The ratios of
gross domestic savings and gross national savings to GDP
are estimated at 6.6 percent and 31.4 percent respectively
in 2020/21. Such ratios were 6.3 percent and 32.6 percent
respectively in the previous year. The ratio of gross fixed
capital formation to GDP is estimated at 27.3 percent in
2020/21 compared to 28.4 percent in the previous year.

(Source: Monetary Policy of Nepal for 2020/21 published
by Nepal Rastra Bank)

3. Financial Sector Situation in Nepal

Deposit mobilization of the Banks and Financial Institutions
(BFls) increased by 21.4 percent to Rs. 4662.73 billion
in 2020/21. Deposit mobilization had increased by 18.7
percent to Rs. 3839.73 billion in the previous year.
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Outstanding private sector credit of the BFIs increased by
27.3 percent to Rs. 4084.81 billion in 2020/21. Such credit
had increased by 12.0 percent to Rs. 3209.79 billion in
the previous year. Total paid-up capital of the BFls (along
with Micro-Finance Institutions) increased by 10.8 percent
to Rs. 390.43 billion in mid-July 2021 compared to Rs.
352.37 billion in mid-July 2020. Since the introduction of
the merger and acquisition policy aimed at strengthening
financial stability a decade ago, the number of the BFls
involved in merger/acquisition reached 229 as of mid-
July 2021. Out of them, the license of 171 BFls has been
revoked thereby forming 58 BFIs. The Central bank has
licensed the NIFRA as only Infrastructure Development
Bank by issuing the separate directive.

(Source: Monetary Policy of Nepal for 2020/21 published
by Nepal Rastra Bank)

Financial Sector Situation
FY 2020-21
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4. Investments in Infrastructure Sector in Nepal

In order to achieve the budgetary objectives, Nepal
Government has expressed vide its Fiscal Budget its
priority for an accelerated industrialization, construction
of infrastructures of strategic importance that are able to
generate immediate impacts and returns and to foster a
balanced development in coordination and cooperations
with Federal, Provincial and Local Goverenments.
Similarly, in line with the plans of current financial
year’'s Monetary Policy to relax the existing provisions
related to loan loss provisions and risk weight on loans
extended to infrastructure projects, Nepal Rastra Bank
has introduced timely amendments in its Directives. The
Government’s budget of current fiscal year has covered
the innovative concept of constructing and operating
large linfrastructure projects by using alternate methods
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of raising resources including ‘Blended Finance’ (EPCF)
required for project’s long term financial needs. Similarly,
the budget has mentioned about revisiting the policy and
procedures related to Hedging solution to manage the
foreign exchange risks inherent in projects developed
with foreign investments. It also mentions about executing
bilateral and multilateral energy trade agreements with
potential countries to attract investments in hydroelectricity
generation, implementing modality of ‘Public Private
Partnership” (PPP) in construction, operation and
maintenance of road, energy, railway and airport projects
under Viability Gap Funding (VGF) modality by granting
subsidies upto specified percentage of capital investment.
Such initiatives of Nepal Government reflects that
infrastructure development has been a key priority of the
government.

4.1. Infrastructure Sector Situation of the Country
Embracing our role of fulfilling the gap in investments in the
private and public infrastructures, we have initiated studies
and discussions required for making investment in socially
and economically significant public infrastructures. In this
context, when we look at the situation of infrastructure of

our country, we find the following:

Road:

In the first 6 months of FY 2020/21, 914 KM road out of
1,879 KM of Pushpalal Mid Hill Highway was upgraded
to the black topped road. Construction of 84 bridges out
of 129 bridges in that Highway was completed. Under
Postal Highway Project, 512 KM out of 1,792 KM were
black topped and construction of 95 bridges out of 219
bridges was completed. Under Galchhi-Trishuli-Mailung-
Syafrubeshi-Rasuwagadhi Road Project, 21 KM out of 82
KM were black topped. In the first 8 months of the same
Financial Year, 284 KM earthen road, 504 KM gravel road
and 550 KM black topped road totaling 1,338 KM were
constructed by Federal Government.

Airport:

Thre are 27 international aircraft carriers flying in Nepal.
The number of airports operating in all seasons is 37.
In the first 6 months of FY 2020/21, 90% of Gautam
Buddha International Airport Project’s construction has
been completed. Similarly, 62% of Pokhara Regional
International Airport Project’s construction has been

completed.
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Tunnel Road:

2.5 KM long tunnel road project from Dahachok, Thankot,
Kathmandu to Sisnekhola is under construction. Currently,
the tunnel excavation work is underway. 18% of the
Project’s construction has been completed so far.

Hydroelectricity:

Durng the first 6 months of FY 2020/21, total capacity of
Grid Connected Hydroelectricity plants reached to 1,458
MW from 1,401 MW whereas per capita consumption
reached 260 Kilowatt Hour. Access to electricity has
reached 93% of the total population. In comparison to the
high per capita consumption of electricity in neighbouring
countries, Nepal also needs to increase per capital
consumption by increasing electricity consumption in
industries, infrastructures and household usage. In
the first 6 months of FY 2020/21, testing of reservoir of
Upper Tamakoshi Hydroelectricity Project has been done
after completing headworks construction of the project.
Construction of 47 KM long Transmission Line of 220 KV
has been completed. Arun Third Hydroelectricity Project’s
(900 MW) physical progress has reached 40% and

financial progress has reached 26.7%.

Transmission Line:

Construction of 132 KV Transmission Line under Kabeli
Corridor Transmission Line Project has been completed.
Construction of 322 towers out of 326 towers under Koshi
Corridor has been completed. Construction of 132 KV
transmission line under Solu Corridor is in final stage. lts
physical progress is at 98.1% and financial progress is at
82% whereas construction of its 292 towers out of 302
towers has been completed. Similarly, construction of its
70 KM transmission line out of 90 KM is completed.

National Pride Projects:

Some National Pride Projects have remained incomplete
since a long time. The progress of most of the National
Pride Projects continued to be slow during FY 2020/21
also.

(Source: Based on Half Yearly Report of FY 2020/21
on Economic Activity Study (consolidated) published by
Nepal Rastra Bank)
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4.2 Challenges and Opportunities in
Infrastructure Sector Investment Growth

Challenges:

Completing the projects with specified quality in
budgeted time and cost, building capacity of contractors
required for accelerating infrastructure development,
managing coordination among various stakeholders
regarding construction works of various infrastructure
projects including roads, irrigation, drinking water and
telecommunication, timely resolving disputes regarding
financial compensation for land/building while aggregating
land required for infrastructure projects, raising low cost
long term capital primarily for construction of public
infrastructure, attracting international investments,
creating pipeline of infrastructure projects and ensuring
supply of raw material, machineries and equipments
together with required labors and experts for infrastructure
projects during ongoing global pandemic of COVID-19 are
some of the major challenges.

Opportunities:

Generation, transmission, distribution and trading of
electricity, constructing and operating large reservoir
hydroelectricity projects under Vertical Separation/
Commercial Blending models, promoting hydroelectricity
sector through a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) by covering
Corridor based generation, transmission, distribution and
trading of electricity, constructing Smart Cities, Monetizing
international and regional airports and expanding financial
reach of infrastructure projects of irrigation, road, tourism
through debt instruments are some viable possibilities in
infrastructure sector development. Leading the economy
towards self-sustainability and gradually improving the
currently increasing Public Debt to GDP ratio by promoting
investments from bilateral and multilateral development
partners into the infrastructure projects of Government’s

priority are opportunities for us.

B. Synopsis of the operations of the Bank during
the review period

After having briefly discussed on Global and Nepalese
economic  outlook, investments, challenges and
opportunities in infrastructure, | would now like to present
the synopsis of the operations of the Bank during FY

2020/21.
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Capital Structure

In the review period, the authorized capital of the Bank
remained unchanged at Rs. 40 billion. In the review
period, the issued capital also remained unchanged at
Rs. 20 billion. Similarly in the review period, 40% ordinary
share of NPR 8 billion allocated to general public in line
with the Capital Structure of the Bank was issued as IPO
and was fully subscribed. After the IPO, Bank’s paid up
capital reached NPR 20 billion with 60% ownership of
promoters including Nepal Government’'s 10% and 40%

ownership of general public.

Deposits

As it takes around one to one and a half years to deploy
Bank’s existing capital into the infrastructure projects
which are already approved or are in the process of
approval with credit lines, the Bank did not raise additional
deposits during the review period. By the end of the review
period, the deposit volume stands at Rs 250 million.

Loans

Despite the adverse situation brought about by global
pandemic of COVID-19, the Bank was able to grow the
volume of approved loans by 300% from NPR 6 billion of
previous FY to NPR 17.7 billion by the end of review period
and the Bank further approved loan of NPR 5.13 billion in
additional 4 projects in the current financial year. By the
date of this report, the Bank’s total approved loans stood
at NPR 22.83 billion and outstanding loans stood at NPR
4.43 billion. Though the construction and operation of the
projects financed by the Bank was disrupted by COVID-19
to some extent, all the loans remained in ‘Pass’ category
with regular repayments. Additionally, the Bank has
prepared a pipeline of public and private projects where
the Bank can potentially invest. In line with this pipeline,
the Bank has initiated evaluation of various projects under
energy, tourism, health, civil aviation, urban infrastructure

and agriculture sectors.

Investment in Fixed Deposits and Government
Securities

In the review period, the Bank invested funds worth NPR
18.57 billlion in the fixed deposit accounts in A class
commercial banks and NPR 1.27 billion in Government
Bonds in line with the Infrastructure Development Bank
Directive 2075. As on 17 Oct 2021, the investment in fixed
deposit was NPR 16.57 billion and Government Bonds
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was NPR 1.27 billion. The volume of investment in fixed
deposits is in declining trend as the loan disbursements in
approved credit lines have picked up.

Total Assets

The Bank’s total assets stands at Rs. 24.42 billion in the
review period which was Rs 13.96 billion in the previous
FY.

Interest Income

In the review period, the Bank was able to generate
an interest income of Rs. 1,362.9 million which was
Rs 1,253.6 million in previous year. The Bank plans to
increase its loan portfolio in the days to come so as to

enhance its interest income from loans.

Commission and Other Income

During the review period, the Bank collected Rs 16.1
million as Loan Management Fee and the total amount
has been deferred in line with provisions of NFRS. The
Bank will continue to increase the commission and other
operating income in the coming FY in line with its strategy
to increase the contribution of commission and other
income in the Bank’s net profit. During the review period,
the commission and other income of the Bank, besides the
deferred amount, is Rs 1.98 million.

Net Profit

In the review period, the Bank was able to register Net
Profit of Rs. 837.4 million which was Rs. 847.1 million
in the previous FY. Net profit of the Bank has slightly
decreased due to most of the investment having been
made in fixed deposits in commercial banks and the
decline in fixed deposit interest rates of commercial banks
owing to slowdown in economy caused by lockdown
measures adopted to control spread of COVID-19. The
Bank is fully committed to further streamline its expenses
and enhance its Net Profit.

Net Worth
The Bank’s Net Worth per share stands at Rs 112.01 in the

review period which was Rs 113.62 in the previous year.

Earning Per Share
The Earning per Share of the Bank stands at Rs. 5.35 in
the review period which was Rs 7.06 in the previous year.

Non-Performing Loans
The Bank does not have any Non-Performing Loan in the
review period.
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Loans Written Off
In the review period, the Bank did not write-off any loans.

NPR NPR

22.83 BILLION 4.43 BILLION
Credit Approvals Outstanding Credit
NPR NPR

24-42 BILLION

Total Assets

1-27 BILLION

Investment in G-Sec

NPR NPR
1.82 00 837 vion

Retained Earnings Net Profit

C. Achievements in the current year and future
plans

As at 17 Oct 2021, the Bank’s deposits remained at
Rs. 250 million, total assets at Rs. 23.32 billion, interest
income at Rs. 421.5 million, interest expenses at Rs. 812
million, Net Profit at Rs 241.8 million and net worth per
share at Rs. 113.22.

The Bank has been conducting its business activities
in line with its objective of raising long term financial
resources and making their long term deployment in
infrastructure projects. In order to meet this objective,
the Bank is working to establish itself as a NODAL bank
for infrastructure development in the nation by promoting
public private partnerships and partnering with all three
levels of Nepal Government, international organizations
and all the stakeholders who are willing to contribute

towards the nation’s infrastructure development.

In the current financial year, the Bank plans to the raise
resources and make investments in ‘Hydro Plus’ strategy
aligning with its long term strategic plans to develop an
overall ‘Infra Eco-System’ by promoting partnerships with
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all three layers of the Government, public and private
institutions, development partners and banks. From
current FY, Bank has prioritized initiatives like issuing
globally proven financial intruments like commercial
blending, commercial hedging, issuing bond with/without
project risks, issuing Green Bond in foreign capital
markets targeting infrastructure sectors like energy,
health, cement, town development, tourism, agriculture

and social infrastructure.

In order to implement the Public Private Partnership, the
Bank has so far entered into agreements with Province
Investment Authority of Province No. 1, Municipal
Association of Nepal and Paanchkhal Municipality,
Kavrepalanchok for development of infrastructure
projects. The Bank aims to partner with Federal, Provincial
and Local Governments to meet their infrastructure needs
in the coming days also.

D. Industrial and Commercial Relationships of
the Bank

In order to expand its industrial and business horizons,
the Bank has established cordial relationships with Nepal
Government and its various departments and offices.
Besides investing in private sector infrastructure projects,
the Bank is also working towards implementing Public
Private Partnership concept in development of public
infrastructures by partnering with Provincial and Local
Governments and initiating feasibility study of projects in
energy, urban infrastructure, health and Special Economic
Zone (SEZ). Similarly, the Bank has established cordial
relationship with international organizations such as World
Bank, Asian Development Bank (ADB), The Foreign,
Commonwealth and Development Office (FCDO), Japan
International Cooperation Agency (JICA), GuarantCo
etc. The Bank exchanges views and feedbacks on many
concerning matters with industries/business associations
in Nepal like Federation of Nepalese Chamber of
Commerce and Industries (FNCCI), Confederation of
Nepalese Industries (CNI), Nepal-German Chamber
of Commerce and Industry, Nepal-USA Chamber of
Commerce and Industries, Confederation of Banks and
Financial Institutions Nepal (CBFIN) being their member.
Accordingly, the Bank plans to establish and strengthen
cordial relationships with all the stakeholders who are
significant for the Bank in terms of its business.
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E. Changes in the Board of Directors

The 68th Board Meeting held on September 04 2020
nominated Mr. Ram Krishna Khatiwada as an independent
director of the Bank. Later, his resignation from the
position citing his personal reasons was approved by the
78th Board meeting held on December 24 2020. Similarly,
as per the letter dated July 05 2021 received from Ministry
of Finance, Mr. Dhani Ram Sharma was nominated as a
director in place of Mr. Shree Krishna Nepal who had been
representing Ministry of Finance in the Board. He took the
position with effect from July 05 2021. There was no other
change in the Board of Directors besides the changes
mentioned above during the review period.

Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Bank has been conducting the Board Meetings in line
with the prevalent acts and regulations guiding the Bank.
During FY 2020/21, a total of 29 Board Meetings were
held.

F. Major Factors affecting the Bank’s business
The major factors affecting the Bank have been highlighted
below:

1. As the measures like lockdowns adopted in the country
for containing spread of COVID-19 pandemic have
contracted the overall economy, the projects financed by
the Bank are expected to be impacted by cost and time

over-run.

2. As industrial, tourism and service sectors are most
affected by COVID-19 pandemic, how the recovery of
these sectors unfold in coming days will affect the Bank’s
business too.

3. Completing construction of infrastructure projects
in prescribed time, cost and quality, accelerating
infrastructure development through capacity building of
skilled contractors, managing co-ordination among various
stakeholder entities involved in projects like road, irrigation,
transmission line, hydroelectricity and telecommunication
will also affect Bank’s business.

4. Natural calamities like earthquake of 2015, COVID-19
pandemic and floods that happened in the country in the
recent past affect infrastructure projects significantly.
Hence, how the risks of such calamities are managed in
future becomes challenging.
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5. The political environment of the country and its
implications in the economy will also reflect on the Bank’s

business.

6. The Bank’s business can also be affected by the
changes in the economic, monetary and financial policies
of the country, movements in foreign exchange rates, ups
and downs in the economies of our neighboring and other
foreign countries and their effects in the Nepalese market.

7. The potential changes in capital markets shall also
impact the Bank’s business.

Taking these factors into account, Bank is committed to
develop and implement appropriate strategies and plans
to achieve its set objectives with respect to infrastructure
development in the country.

G. Board’s response to the Audit Comments
Besides few insignificant irregularities, the Audit Report of
the Bank for FY 2020/21 does not report any comment that
is likely to affect Bank’s business adversely. The corrective
measures have been taken for reported irregularities.

H. Recommendation for Dividend distribution
From distributable profit out of retained earning as per
financial report of FY 2020/21, the decision was made to
propose to distribute bonus share of Rs 1,600,000,000
(Rs One billion six hundred million only) being 8% of
the paid up capital of Rs 20 billion and cash dividend of
Rs 84,210,527 (Rs eighty four million two hundred ten
thousand five hundred twenty seven only) for tax purpose
being 0.42% of paid up capital, which is proposed to be
distributed upon approval from Annual General Meeting
and approval of Nepal Government, Ministry of Finance in
line with Company Act 2063, Clause 182 (2).

I. Number of shares seized, value of such seized
shares, funds received by the Bank before
seizure of such shares and fund collected by
the Bank from sales of seized shares and fund
reimbursed against such shares

No shares of the Bank have been seized during the review
period.
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J. Progress of the Bank or its subsidiary company
during the review period and evaluation of the
same at the end of the review period

The bank does not have any subsidiary company till date.

K. Major transactions of the Bank and its
subsidiary company and any major changes in
the transactions during the review period

The bank does not have any subsidiary company till date.

L. Information provided by the substantial
shareholders of the Bank during the review
period.

No such information obtained from any of the substantial
shareholders.

M. Details of share ownership of Directors and
Officials of the Bank and information received by
the Bank from them if they are involved in the
share transactions of the Bank during the review
period.

As per prevailing legal provision and in line with provision
in Bank’s Memorandum of Association, 0.2% of IPO
issued to General Public was distributed among Bank’s
staff members. Besides the same, no information obtained
by the Bank during the review period about details of share
ownership of Directors and Officials of the Bank and no
other information received by the Bank from them if they
are involved in the share transactions of the Bank.

N. Information obtained with respect to personal
interests of the Directors or their relatives with
reference to agreements entered with the Bank
during the review period.

No such information obtained by the Bank during the
review period.

O. In case the Bank has purchased its own
shares during the review period, information
regarding reasons for purchasing the shares,
the number and value of shares purchased and
the payments made by the Bank for such shares
Till date the Bank has not purchased its own shares

P. Internal Control Mechanism

The Bank has constituted Risk Management Committee,
Human Resource Management Committee, Audit
Committee and Anti Money Laundering Committee in
line with the Directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank to
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infrastructure development banks. These committees
periodically conduct meetings and fulfil their duties and
responsibilities as specified in the Directives. In addition
to these committees, there are Management level
committees actively involved in managing and monitoring

day to day business activities.

With an intent to minimize and control the credit risk,
operational risk, liquidity risk, market risk, interest rate
risk, foreign exchange risk and other risks associated
with the Bank’s operations, the Bank has established
well-structured departments and policy framework and
is focused on continuously enhancing the effectiveness
of the internal control mechanisms of the Bank. The
Bank is committed to further enhance the capability and
competence of these units and departments in the near
future.

The Bank has in place an Internal Auditor to monitor
and evaluate the internal control mechanisms, audit
procedures and processes and dissemination of financial
information and reports of the Bank. The Internal Auditor
also ensures that the departments and operations of the
Bank are functioning in line with the relevant act, policies
and procedures. In the review period, the Bank outsourced
an independent auditor for internal audit of the Bank as
done in the previous year. Similarly, the Bank also has
in place management level committees like Management
Committee, Management Credit Committee and Assets
and Liability Committee headed by Chief Executive
Officer which regularly discuss, assess and manage risks
associated with loan disbursements, asset and liability
management, foreign exchange, liquidity and fixing of
interest rates and take appropriate decisions or make
recommendations to the higher authorities.

Similarly, the management level Credit Committee
headed by Chief Executive Officer takes credit
decisions for new loans and monitors progress of
existing loan accounts. Furthermore, there are Arthik
Nirdeshan Samitee (Financial Direction Committee) and
Procurement Committee, established as per provision of
Bank’s Financial Bylaws, actively involved in expenditure
management, procurement management and other
management matters. In accordance with the directions
and guidances regularly received from the Regulators,
Board of Directors and Auditors, the Bank is committed
to maintain the highest level of compliance ensuring all
required policies and organizational framework are in
place.
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Q. Details regarding total operating expenses in
the last fiscal year

Out of total amount of Rs. 130,696,798 as per Annexures
4.36, 4.37 and 4.38 of the Profit and Loss Statement, total
operating expenses of the Bank stood at Rs. 116,777,484
in the FY 2020/21.

R. List of Members in the Audit Committee,
remuneration, allowance and facilities of these
members, report of operations of the Committee
and recommendations given by the Committee

As per the provision of Nepal Rastra Bank as well as
relevant acts and policies of the country, the Board
has constituted an Audit Committee chaired by a non-
executive Director. The main objective of this committee
is to monitor the internal control mechanism of the Bank,
evaluation of auditing process, supervision of financial
reports and their dissemination and to ensure that
these financial reports are accurate and adequate. The
committee also ensures that the departments of the Bank
are complying with the relevant guidelines, policies and
procedures while conducting their operations. There were
a total of 5 meetings of the Audit Committee in the FY

2020/21 and the details of the same are provided below:

Number of  Meeting
meetings with Allowance
the member’s (NPR)

presence
Director Mr. Shree Krishna Nepal 5 40,000
Mr. Bikesh Madhikarmi (Partner, 4 32,000

CSC & Co, Internal Auditor)
Mr. Dinesh Pandey,
Member Secretary 5

S. Details of the receivable, if any, from
Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Substantial
Shareholders or their relatives or firms where
they are associated.

No such receivable was booked in FY 2020/21.
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T. Remuneration, Allowance and facilities
provided to Directors, Chief Executive Officer
and Officials of the Bank.

Details of payments made to the Directors in the FY
2020/21:

Description Amount (NPR)

1. Meeting Allowances for Board members 1,102,000
and Directors representing in Board Level
Committees

2. Other Expenses pertaining to Board and
Board Level Committee Meetings:
a) Travel Expenses --
b) Other Expenses 267,696
Total Expenses 1,369,696

Details of remuneration, allowance and facilities
provided to Chief Executive Officer and
Managers:

The details remuneration, allowance and facilities provided
to Chief Executive Officer and Managers in FY 2020/21

are as given below:

Description Amount (NPR)

1. Chief Executive Officer 12,100,000.00

2. Deputy Chief Executive Officer 8,231,987.27
3. Deputy General Managers 11,416,408.52
4. Managers 6,583,708.99
5. Assistant Managers 7,731,992.30

Total Expenses 46,064,097.08

Along with above amounts, the statutory bonus and
facilities have been provided in occordance to the Bonus
Act and Staff Service By-Law of the bank.

U. Dividend yet to be collected by shareholders
There is no such uncollected dividend outstanding.

V. Details regarding purchase and sale of assets
as per Clause 141 of Companies Act

During FY 2020/21, the Bank did not purchase or sell
any assets as per the Clause 141 of the Companies
Act 2063 (2006), except for the purchases of necessary
assets required for operations of the Bank such as office
equipment, furniture etc.

W. Details regarding transactions with affiliated
company as per Clause 175 of Companies Act
As per the Clause 175 of Companies Act 2063 (2006),
there has not been any transaction with the affiliated
companies during the review period.
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X. Other Details, if any, to be shared in the
Director’s Report as per the Companies Act 2063
(2006) and other relevant Acts

The Bank would like to thank its statutory auditor, M/S MGS
and Associates Chartered Accountants, for successfully
conducting the audit of the Bank for the FY 2020/21.

Y. Human Resources

The Bank develops and implements an annual training
calendar to ensure management and growth of human
resources who have passion and knowledge required
for infrastructure development. In order to maintain
the morale of the Bank employees, the Bank offers
remuneration, facilities and growth opportunities at
par with the industry. Acknowledging the fact that the
human resource are valuable assets of the Bank, our
staff members are adequately nominated to trainings,
conferences and seminars. The Bank has also enhanced
the effectiveness of its performance evaluation process
so as to ensure effective and objective evaluation of the
employee performance. Bank has allocated adequate
budget and resources to ensure that no gap remains in

skill sets and growth of the employees.

Similarly, the Bank has established an ‘Infra Excellence
Center where consultants having domestic and
international experience in conducting preliminary
evaluation, preparing detailed project reports and financial
structuring for large infrastructure projects are empaneled
and assigned for technical and financial evaluation of
various projects. Additionally, the Bank is in the process
of recruiting domain experts having expertise in sectors
like energy, social and economic infrastructure, health and
aviation under contract basis.

Z. Corporate Governance and Compliance

The Board of Director and Management fully understand
that the Bank can remain strong only through highest
level of corporate governance and compliance. Hence the
governance and compliance culture is embraced by the
officials and staff members of all levels when conducting
transactions in compliance with the prevailing Acts and
Rules, directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank and other
regulatory authorities and internal policies. The Bank has
established various committees and sub-committees and
developed Compliance Checklist and Codes of Conduct
so that governance and compliance are ensured right at
the time of staff members making transactions. In order

to ensure overall corporate governance and compliance,
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Corporate Governance Policy, 2018 is implemented and

reviewed timely and regularly.

There is a clear demarcation of roles, responsibilities and
duties of each of the employees of the Bank in order to
ensure coordination and effectiveness in completion of
tasks with an aim of avoiding any actions not in interest
of customers or shareholders. The Bank has been
arranging participation of its Directors, Senior Executives
and employees in various corporate governance related
seminars, workshops and trainings. In internal culture
of implementing directions and guidance received from
Nepal Rastra Bank, other regulators and auditors has
been developed.

Za. Corporate Social Responsibility

The Bank has been placing high emphasis towards
observing its Corporate Social Responsibility since its
inception by establishing a Corporate Social Responsibility
Fund at institutional level in line with directives of Nepal
Rastra Bank. During the review period, the Bank extended
financial support to one municipality/hospital in each of 7
provinces with Rs 700,000 to each of them, totaling Rs
4,900,000 (Rs Four million nine hundred thousand) for
building/upgrading their infrastructure to cope with second
wave of COVID-19 pandemic. Similarly on the occation of
the Bank’s second anniversary, the Bank supported Nepal
Snehi Kakh, an institute established to look after children,
youths and senior citizens who are either mentally or
physically challenged or disowned by the society, by
handing Rs 300,000 to build the infrastructure. Similarly,
the Bank also supported Confederation of Nepalese
Industries with Rs 500,000 for their initiative of ‘Make in
Nepal’ commenced to promote brand recognition and use
of Nepalese products and services.
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Zb. Adherence to Know Your Customer (KYC)
and Anti Money Laundering (AML)

The Bank has been completely adhering to the prevailing
regulations and directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank
with respect to Know Your Customer and Anti Money
Laundering.

The Bank has constituted an Anti Money Laundering
Committee in convenorship of a non-executive director.
Similarly, the Compliance Unit functioning under Bank’s
Risk Management Department has been continuously
working to constantly monitor whether the operations and
activities of the Bank are being conducted in line with the
AML policies and procedures. A compliance officer has
been nominated to ensure compliance in all the Bank’s
transactions.

The Bank has developed and implemented various
bylaws, policies and guidelines with reference to the
respective KYC and AML polices of the regulatory
authorities. In the review period, the Bank has issued Anti-
Money Laundering & Combating Financing of Terrorism
and KYC Policy, 2020 after adding additional provisions
related to Know Your Customer (KYC) to the Anti-Money
Laundering & Combating Financing of Terrorism Policy
2018.

Zc. Implementation of suggestions received
from the shareholders

The Bank has duly appreciated and implemented the
suggestions provided by its valued shareholders with
respect to its operations, performance and growth. The
Bank hopes to continue receiving such valuable insights
and suggestions in the days to come.

Vote of Thanks

| would once again like to extend our deepest appreciation and
gratitude on behalf of the Board of Directors to Government of
Nepal, Ministry of Finance, Nepal Rastra Bank, Provincial and
Local Governments, Regulators, Shareholders, Customers,
Media Personalities and all other stakeholders for your
constant patronage, guidance, support and trust towards the
Bank. We are hopeful to continue receiving such support and
guidance in the future as well.

Thank you once again.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
Anuj Agarwal, Chairman
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DEPUTY GENERAL MANAGER
- BUSINESS (MBA)

Mr. Ram Krishna Khatiwada , Chartered
Financial Analyst (CFA) and Chartered
Economist (ChE). Mr. Khatiwada has 19
years plus of professional experiencein
project finance, infrastructure finance,
energy finance, project development &
management, managing investment
bank & financial institutions. He was
associated with NIBL Capital Markets
Limited, Hydroelectricity Investment
& Development Company Limited
(HIDCL), Office of the Investment Board
Nepal (IBN), Electricity Regulatory
Commission Nepal in various senior
and leadership positions. Mr.Khatiwada
holds MBS, CFA, ChE and CP3
Foundation. He is pursuing PHD in
Infrastructure Finance.

Mr. Bhupendra Pandey has more
than 21 years of work experience
in banking, financial and corporate
sectors. He had Served as Deputy
Chief Executive Officer of Rastriya
Banijya Bank Ltd. and as Board
Member of NLG Insurance Company
Ltd. Mr. Pandey is a Fellow Chartered
Accountant (FCA) and holds Master's
degree in Business Studies.

Mr. Surya Bahadur Tamang has more
than 30 years of banking experience.
He headed Corporate Credit of
Siddhartha Bank Ltd and worked
as Relationship Manager (Credit) of
Nabil Bank Ltd. He also served as
Civil Servant under Ministry of Health.
Mr. Tamang holds Master's degree in
Business Administration.
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Mr. Binaya Nath Neupane has over
28 years of banking experience.
He has worked as Chief Marketing
Officer, Chief Business Officer
and Chief of Human Resource at
Janata Bank Nepal Ltd. He has
also served as Board Member of
Swabalamban Laghubitta Bikas
Bank and as Credit Risk Analyst &
Head of Liability Management of
Nabil Bank Ltd. Mr. Neupane holds
MBA degree.

Mr. Suwarn Kumar Singh has more
than 15 years of experience in
banking and institutional capacity
building. He worked as Director of
Studies at NASC and as Manager
of Information Tech. of Nepal Bank
Ltd. He also served as consultant
in various projects funded
by national and international
agencies. Mr. Singh holds MBA
and Msc IT degree.

Mr. Rabin Shrestha has more than
18 years of banking experience.
He worked as Country Head of
Corporate & Project Financing
of Prabhu Bank Ltd and also
as Manager New Business of
Standard Chartered Bank Nepal
Ltd. He also worked as Corporate
& Commercial Banking Officer
of Citizens Bank International
Ltd. Mr. Shrestha holds Master's
degree in Business Studies.
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RAM KRISHNA KHATIWADA
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Message from CEQO, Ram Krishna Khatiwada
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First of all, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to all of you for
the continuous guidance, trust and patronage the Bank has received
from you. | am confident the Bank will continue to receive such trust

and patronage in the days to come as well.

In the context of NIFRA getting established in line with the vision of
Nepal Government and Regulators to meet the need of a specialized
institution for accelerating investments into large infrastructure
projects, it gives me immense pleasure to get this opportunity to share
some of the key business targets and achievements of the Bank in
the 3™ Annual General Meeting, which is graced by the presence of
our valued public shareholders for the first time since the inception
of the Bank.
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Business Goals and Achievements

Having been established with different objectives than that
of the existing financial institutions of the country, NIFRA
has formulated a 5 year Business Plan aiming to play a
leading role in accelerating investments into the overall
Infra Eco-System of the country through partnership and
co-operation with all the three layers of the Government,
related Ministries and Departments, Development
Partners, International Banks and Financial Institutions.

When we look at the current status of completed
infrastructure projects and annual investment gap in
this sector, we find that there is a large concentration of
investments in hydroelectricity projects. Hence, we have
taken a strategy of ‘Hydro Plus’ for investment in other
infrastructure sectors such as health, cement, urban
development, tourism, agriculture and social infrastructure
sector and we have prioritized the issuance of instruments
like commercial blending, commercial hedging, structured
debt instruments with or without project’s risk sharing, for
raising resources which are already proven successful in
international capital markets.

As there is a need of a clear policy framework that
enables and motivates private sector and infrastructure
development banks to invest in infra-sectors like these,
we have been actively discussing and sharing our inputs
with Ministry of Finance, National Planning Commission
and Nepal Rastra Bank for developing suitable policy
framework.

The role of project readiness in terms of preparatory works
like Feasibility Reports, Detailed Project Reports, Financial
Structuring and Closures becomes crucial for construction
of a large projects to take off. We generally find that the
construction of many public infrastructure projects do not
take off due to lack of these works, whereas there exists a
good pipeline in case of projects being financed by private
sector. In a circumstance like this, NIFRA needs to play an
important role in development of both private and public
infrastructure projects, for which NIFRA has established
an ‘Infra Excellence Center’ to empanel expert consultants
having national and global experiences to study, design,
develop and carry out technical and financial evaluations
of such projects.
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We have initiated studies on development, construction
and operation of various infra-projects like storage
hydropower project and high voltage transmission line in
energy sector, smart city in urban infrastructure sector,
multi-specialty hospital in health sector, integrated
infrastructure including cold-storage in agriculture sector,
new projects under airport monetization framework in
tourism sector and 2 Special Economic Zones (SEZ) in
co-ordination with all three layers of the Government and
Governmental/Public Entities.

Resource Management and Investment

As long term large investment is required for development
of infrastructure projects, acquiring of such resources
requires new and unique instruments and modalities.
We have been working on establishing sectoral funds,
issuing Onshore and Offshore Bonds and Debentures,
issuing ‘project linked’ bonds, raising long term deposits
and acquiring low cost funds in partnership with foreign
banks and investors in order to raise viable resources for
infrastructure projects.

We are in the process of issuing Energy and Infrastructure
Bonds of NPR 20 Billion in domestic market and Green
Bond of USD 30 million in foreign capital market. Our
strategic business plan is to expand the portfolio of
loans and investments to NPR 100 billion in five years.
Once our initiatives taken towards investing into public
infrastructures succeed, we can easily achieve projected
goals and Bank’s books and financial indicators also will
continue to grow.

We have requested for approval to issue bonds which
can be paid up in tranches, total of such installments
being within an approved limit, so as to align the inflow
of bonds proceeds with the loan disbursement schedules
of the projects. This shall help us in managing Asset
Liability effectively as per the financial needs of the
projects. Furthermore, we have developed relevant
policy framework to make mixed investments (both Debt
and Equity) in projects with sound feasibility and we are
now engaged in discussions with couple of such projects
already.
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Institutional Capacity Building

Pursuing NIFRA’s strategic goals, we have amended
the existing organizational structure by adding a vertical
which shall put in its dedicated focus to oversee areas
like commercial blending, commercial hedging and
public projects under PPP modality. We are also in the
process of recruiting technical experts who shall lead our
new initiatives in priority infra-sectors like energy, health,
tourism, social and urban infrastructure.

The Bank has developed various policies and guidelines
for making the day to day work smooth, simple and
cost effective through strict corporate governance and
meaningful institutional capacity building. Adequate
emphasis has been given on appropriate organizational
structure and skill enhancement of the employees to
ensure compliance of existing Acts and Rules, directives
of Nepal Rastra Bank and other regulators on a day to

day basis.

Finally,

| would like to express my heartfelt gratitude for all the
support, guidance and trust extended by Ministry of
Finance, regulators, valued Shareholders and customers.
| would also like to cordially thank Chairman and all the
members of the Board for their constant guidance, support
and trust.

Ram Krishna Khatiwada
Chief Executive Officer
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Team NIFRA




We are striving to contribute in the
infrastructure financing through innovative solutions.
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Suwarn K. Singh, Rabin Shrestha
Row-2: Lakshmi Thapa, Bishal Shakya, Kirit Rayamajhi, Smriti Sharma, Jeeva Nath Sapkota, Iswor Bandhu Gautam,
Row-3: Saurav Tiwari, Manjil Man Shrestha, Ajaya Ghimire, Dinesh Pandey, Ashish Purush Dhakal, Rajib Malla,
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The investment sectors of the Bank
includes Energy (Hydro Power, Solar
Power), Road, Tunnel, Tourism
(Hotel, Cable Car, Amusement
Park, Recreation Center), Urban
Infrastructure, Social Infrastructures
(Education, Health, Airport, Medical
College, Hospital), Special Economic
Zone (SEZ), Industrial Parks, Cement,
Town Development, Information

and Communication Technology
(ICT), Environment Friendly projects
(Green), Solid Waste Management,
Drinking  Water, Irrigation and
Agriculture Infrastructures.

WATER & SANITATION INFRA



AGRICULTURE

ENERGY

SEZ

INDUSTRIAL PARKS

WASTE MANAGEMENT

GREEN INFRA

SOCIAL INFRA
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DETAILS RELATED TO ANNEXTURE 15 OF SECURITIES REGISTRATION AND
ISSUE REGULATION, 2073

(Related to Rule 26 (2) )
1. Board of Directors’ Report: Part of this Annual Report
2. Auditor’s Report: Part of this Annual Report

3. Audited Financial Statements: Part of this Annual Report

4. Details Related to Legal Actions:
a. Any litigation lodged by or against the Bank during the financial year.

No such instances of litigation.

b. Any litigation lodged by or against the Promoter or Director of the Bank related to violating prevalent rules or involved
in criminal offense during the financial year.

No information received by the Bank related to such litigation.

c. Any litigation lodged by or against the Promoter or Director of the Bank related to financial crime during the financial

year.

No information received by the Bank related to such litigation.

5. Analysis of Trading of Shares of the Bank:
a. Management view on Trading of Shares of the Bank in Securities Market:
- No Management view related to this since Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. has been operating under supervision of
Securities Board of Nepal.

b. Maximum, Minimum & Closing value, Total Transaction days, and Total Transacted Shares during the financial year

are as provided below:

Maximum Minimum Closing Total Share Total
Price (NPR) Price (NPR) Price (NPR) Transaction Transaction

(‘000) Days

First Quarter (Ashwin end 2077) -
Second Quarter (Poush end 2077) -
Third Quarter (Chaitra end 2077) 726 340 585 25,841 39
Fourth Quarter (Ashad end 2078) 623 473 492 24,498 65

6. Problems and Challenges: Part of this Annual Report

7. Corporate Governance: Part of this Annual Report

Ram Krishna Khatiwada
Chief Executive Officer
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ETHIST AIETITeAUTehT SHHHT SRETIIEITHT STTHT AAGTILeIuT TaT UTHTT 3gtet feIuaht & qur aamadiequr STafeny
USTAT Gehelh T HIRIATRT YA TREHT S | 8T,

W gl TTodl qUT STeTaTSiiehl SR d T9HT JeIgth TTervuieh] SiaHeRT Ui T STqH i |
STITEwEesh! THRIHTTRT ATRT STTEvaeh ITTh TETHRIETUThT hrifaefiehT S M TRATIRIeIvT T HET TTHeh! AThT
ST T T STTHHHTVIEE UTed T | Toclohl HROTeT HeaT ST Ieh! ShRUTel TR &9HT Jegeh fafaa
feraroTent FRTT YUY I TSI SHiEH afe el g | formm, STerarsiaT fafergar, S, ST gersa
e, YUl TG AT STTieh TARI-=vTeRT SHE WU EOEES |

m grfier AT gratd aikaee fritor e aft S it feer St feRlt |t
I THHRT =R FII0TeRT THTERTRAT ST T YeT 7T 3¢Edeh! &AThT &I |

n grfier fafor foator @R Tl W vuewT orar Hfifaeen! SUThATER!, ETSIHMEER] HIGHehdTRl qT
RTEATIGRT TR T2ATEH! 0T GATHT TNTEhT FfehT T S |

m greiel UTT qehT FoHT TS, STHERRT STJER STHIT 03 THEhT & b S R 89 e &9 (Going concern)
3ferd el B | Afe STHICATE e TR T o T 9T | &9HT STt Wehl & W= AHET grier 8THT
iqeGHT Hea e GerrdT Ui STHTRNUT TS0 58 | ATE 3th YTl TS THUERT GUSHT STHT T-HT THHTSI
T4 § | ST TThY imaietor ufdae U eteht fiafd TemT UTed TehT THTOTE%=RT SATETRAT THRTHT & | T
igeTeRT FreAT qerT uRfeerfaer S Going concern T FTHT HETEH § T STAEATAT T3 IS |

EHIST G a8 T+ SATeqarigedT 317 fawergeant e ASHT TRUhT JETITEIUERT & Ta U T STeh
TRI=TeRT HETaqUT hiHEE THA T CTETIIETUTeh! HEHT STHICT Tiae TehT HE@qUl fauag®en! gorT ST&H Yar
T |
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316 Mool a2 forIraTaT arel 3MavAdbaid) ufdaca
ETHT AGTIETUTehT SATAT gHY et s oT ST W e |

%) T T Ua TIvaTemT SraTafeTvTeht SETeht SATHT STTEvehaT ATEET ETHeT HITT TR SRR qT T hiuTes
TG TRT B |

@) faxfiar faaworee et U, R0%3 AU UL Seheh! TG aHIfsT qam TTRUshT & T | faatures et Tee!
T feraradiT gEed Wl B |

T) TSl U TG oT, TIRIehUT T el TedTaiehdTachl TIETURIEUhI SHHWT sichehl dTeieh SHiq
T T FHAENT SHISHT d@T TFaet FIAT o faeg wmerst Wl ar feae ferdra femtr
TXRT AT el BT AT TEhT ETHT STHERRIAT SATTRT & |

7) gl faueRatel @ Sifemar o Ged T ARt FT HE qur idiaeiee el SAHeRT WTed
T AT |

%) gHier St Tewmafrdiaen JETEUT MR ATURAT, dhel U UL dehehl YA amifeH v
TITET Yot Y Tl TS0 © W1 TEET gEe qeifad &R geRl i Aeiifed WS S
T ITSThT G |

) Jaterd g ATAR IJRGHIEE 1 UST T Srqof fafaer qm o1= SHeRT T fawree uaM Meh! I |

®) Aehehl GaTe T foxfier foeroreeshr 3fed weqdisromT dTeiier STwaier TS i T #rf qor e
T STHhTIAT TTTHT & |

) Sehehl HETAT TraTSTeh &eh! UT3UhT B |

%, f8.T. 72T [T
TR

.97 0. e wEitued
TS THIEE2H

UDIN 210927CA00125Z4wsQ

Taie: STTiger 22, Rove (September 27, 2021)
T FHISHATST, TUTA



66 | fauhr aTitfer UfaaeT Rovw /e

fadi=r Rerfa fdazor
R09c T AME 3 TEHH
(TPH T.)
oilc R adf ard ay
e |
T q9T R A %9 %00,39% £0% ¥ 350,555,330
T AT AHAT TERN HioaTd ¥R q,59% %%5,0%R 2 43,993
% a7 fa<fir SRATERAT Placements ¥.3 95,353, %%, 059 5,95% 5% 390
Derivative faciiar IR ¥.¥ - -
qT AIME  FFI ¥4 - -
% qur fofm SeomeReTs feuer # qum amadl ¥ % - -
TEFeedTs [QUapl Faf qar I ¥.\9 RO URE L ¥ L9 34%,3¥0
[ERICEE I ¥.5 q,35%,9¥¢ T ¥0 QR3,53,R5Y¥
T B FEA ¥.% . -
YEIE  HFIAHAT A ¥ .90 - ;
THINTIE HFIHET AT ¥.99 - -
A FEIAT ¥.9R - -
SESIT qIT ITHT ¥.93 59,9%3,R¥% V3 355,R%%
qg q9T AHA FEIA ¥.9% 9,359, ¥0% 10,53%,30%
R HT FEA ¥ qY - }
97 gEiEE ¥ 9% 5,¥50,95\9 99,339,539
T R¥,¥33,803,39 13,355, ¥35,53
BIRCEEPEECE THE FEE At e
SfEH qar F=TeT gife fafaenr g
Her afdaeT SIgaR
...... e o e cusl%czﬂamamm?
BEISED BEISED BEISED RICGES
w.ﬁT.gﬁr. g FQﬁﬁTQE}T
TS THlGrerad
fafd: R09z10%10%

W PGATEL, AT



wuer: focig fafq fae

NIFRA ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

67

@ w)
oiic R ad ard a¥
i
g qar fo<limr eameearg foq @it ¥.q0 - -
I g aWI'SL fq e ¥ .95 = _
Derivative faciiar IR ¥.9% - -
AEFERATC T [aTT ¥.30 309,338,555 340,030,930
qrady ¥ .39 4,500,000,000 -
T B IR ¥R 3¥,093,09% 3R,%38,33%
I (Provisions) ¥R - -
WRE F I ¥.9Y 9,345,5%% 1,435,94%
ER B RIC L ¥.33 5% 593,953 ¥%,50% 55 ¥
HOTH S ¥.R% - i,
Subordinated AR ¥ .Y = -
o Al R,0R),6¥3R%Y¥ EEEALARAY
\i;,ﬁ -
TGS ¥.3% 20,000,000 000 93,000,000 000
et pe - }
Hiera gATR 9,535,29%,5RY¥ 9,33%,3%9,40%
SRIST qIT HUE® ¥ .30 YR 5¥9 453 %00 ¥4¥,5%%
qacgteent fifed &@ ISft R,¥09,945,359 93,33%,53%,3¥%
fa=aor FX&#T @ (Non Controlling Interest) - -
ksl R, ¥09,9%5,359 3,83%,53%,3¥%
FA qAfueq qar SR R¥,¥3,703, W1 13R%5,¥35,5R
qEqIfad amfaea qar gidagar ¥ .35 9%R,¥5Y, ¥R -
gl P gE wEOl el 1499 192.5%
LIRER T PERPED HE FEE At e
Sifed qar g9 aife frfeept amt
Her gidaeT T8N
...... o e Ry e m?w s
BEIEET BEICED EEICE RICEEY
w.fE. e geifares
fafa: Rousionioy

W FSATSY, A9



68 | fawhr aTitfer UfaareT Rovw /e

GITT dT oiladTel fdazor
09 U 000 G I ATAE 095 TEH
(TPH %)
olic R adf ard ay
N AT ¥.R% 9Q,3%3,R93,¥ 33 q,343,5%5R,99%
IEERCE] ¥.30 R8,0%3,R55 R3,095,¥%%
ge A= AT q,33%,R0%¥3¢ q,330,%%¥,]0
odb qaT HHIH AR ¥.39 9,209,343 ¥00,9%¥0
ged q91 HATT @@= ¥.3R ¥R,03Y4 4,593
T YoF TUT FAAT AT 9,23¥,99%5 39%,3R0
e o, Yoo qUl HHIT AR 9,339,5¥3%93 9,33,035,4¥9
g AAS AR ¥.33 - -
E S EICE AT ¥.3% - -
P YA AR q,339,5¥3,%9% 9,339,035, 4%
FoAT qAT 7T FEIAAT AT EeT/ () ¥.3% 9%,5%3,53% ¥,249,9%Y
e FEEH AR 1,30,00%,95 ¥ q,R3%,056%,94R
g9 @9
FHA @ ¥.3% 53,953,3%0 9 293,093
I AT @ ¥.39 3,394 RRAYY ¥ ¥
29 %adl d9r Amortization ¥.3g 9¥,%¥9,59% 9,339,484
SRISEIREL 9,9%0,3R3,R59 9,909,%9,%3%
TR AT AT ¥.3% ©¥RY R ¥Y 405,%% ¥,308
TR g g ¥.%0 - q93,40%
AAH AP FATH 9,9%9,0¥5 _3R 1,290,395,3¥9
qATH GA ¥.¥q 3%0,335,4%0 37R,09394%
T B 3%O0,R1VERR ECEACAUCICEL Y
WRE T qR0,%3c (\9R3,0R)
& TR/ (FAET) 539,¥q0,30% SRR R LW [
FATRET e
T aiFe® G39,¥q90,39% ¥ ¥ Q5
fa=a0r FX&HT @1 (Non Controlling Interest) - -
Tq qEP GATH 539,¥90,36% 5¥9q¥Y 954
gfr AT SR
AERAT (Basic) Ifd AT sm=TH %.3Y v,0%
HfId (Diluted) fd 9 SATRTAI K.3% v, 0%
faar=r arer c=iturel 91 oot Afdast 31q[31 3igrdrct
BIPER:HPEECE UG FEER Afdwd e
Sifgw A g4 . gife fufashr g
Her ufdaeT SIgar
ol I1e1 At oG WRIG GOIcT cfretarofl il v Rie. #1239 IRONS
ARG ARG I L
LS THGrarad
fafa:  Rowsi0%10%

W HGATS, A
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fdxqd 3ne<rell fdazor
09 HEU R0ve 3@ 3 ATIE R0Vc FEAH
(TPH T.)
oilc R adf ard ad
a9 e FATE 539,¥90,39% ¥ ¥y 5%
¥ faeqa SR, AEE TR
Sferd gedied el (91X ITHTITH SANH)
Sfed Headr wuE afeEdq - -
ATRT AT FIRGH @E THH - -
qAHeATEAAE HUH GE AT (AT - -
g 9dié Hedge
I FeIHT TR TATAR THAER GUE - -
ATRT ATFTHT (AANTRY TRUST @F @A - -
AT AT ATSTHTHAT WUl Acturial ST/ STaRTH - -
v faeqa o go frdesT grafad aEes - -
qaty sl ¥ fawa AR (R qeETde) - -
Fafy wld Fo fawqa s 539,¥90,36% S¥9q¥Y 95Y
79 faqa s fer
Tl A EEE 539,¥90,393 S¥9q¥Y 5%
freor aeeer @rd (Non Controlling Interest) - -
Fafy sl P fawqa SR 539,¥90,36% a¥9q¥Y 4%
faerer oirer silura 191 oot Jfdast 3cfo1 31grdrct
A -HETH e THE FEE At FeA
Sifew qar w9 e Hife fafashr gy
Her HfdaeT STgHR
oll Jret 2t gog UKAIG GPIeT creTerotl iRt e Rie al?‘mamm?
BEISED BEISED REINED EIGES
w.fow. we uenfered
fhfd: R09z10%10%

. PISATSY, AT



70 | fwpr afer wfdae 00w/ ve

sadicion Aed! uRadoid fdazor

09 HEW 000 IR 34 AWE 09 TEHH

0K HEW 9 TP HRE 43,000,000,000 - QUORYIR -
0% HEW q TP FAEIAG Ao 4R,000,000,000 - ORY IR -
af wfedr e s

T Wik FATw

a7 fawa s, @R aeEae
S Heaiapd HIW, (AR JULHIHT A1)
IS AUE AR/ (AEE)
gfeafira &9 FISHETET YUST Actuarial  JTRT/ AT
TE YA€ SHATH aTd HUH TR/ (AT
fazeft fafraweme wuar AT/ (FEET)
(fagerar war faia avoiier wou aftaadare gia)
T s oo faqa smarl - - - -
T AT, HITAT LR R5,R¥3, K&
I ALTAT HNAE qHCH
AT TO FRAN, TFENET G THAEINT TR
AT S ThRuEt -
ST AT FehlEe -
THE SIRIREEEATS ATSHIE TR ATHILT -
N AT AT T -
T Arrer fadwer wier
R IR A L 43,000,000,000 - 35%,939¥%g -

098 HEU 9 THT AR 93,000,000,000 - 35%,939¥%5 -
099 HEW q TIH FAAG HiE@ 9R,000,000,000 - 35%,039¥Rg -
af s e smar

¥ wikdr gATET

avq fawqa ATRRTA, FT TLATH

ST HATHT M, (AT IILHIHT AT

JAHeATEAATE HUH! AR/ (AT

gfeafrd &9 FISETET 9UST Actuarial  JTRT/ ST

TE YATE SHUAY aId qUH! AT/ (A1)

fazeft fafraweme wuar AT/ (FEET)

(fagerr war faia avoiier wou aftaaqare gia)
T s oo faqa smarl - - - -
T AT, HITAT LR 9%9,¥53,00¥
I ALTAT HNAE qHCH
AT TO FRAR, TFENET G THEINT TR

AT T TR 5,000,000 000

ST AT FehlEe -

THE SIRIRFEEATS ATSHIE TR ATHILT -

FE AT AT TR -
T AT fadwer wiuer

FA AFEE qur faor %,000,000,000 - - -
09 ATYE AHTAH AT AT 30,000,000,000 - ARY IRANR -
fderar airer s=ilural 91 oot Jldast 3fe[S1 1Jrdret ofl 1ot At

A -TETIAaH THE FEE s EEta) BEICES

faf.  R0Gsi0%10%
W HISATSY, A9
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(TFH ®.)

STl IROETD) [ZATAT BB

forRIATPRY 3faa  yoldfcAida ifia afommT 31 DIUEH STl foreresioTen Side Sadict
®Y  dcAidol L TREd!
L1 xaref

%9,¥R0 - - RRRIRIREN 9,55%,908 R,955,R90,5%9 - RE5,R90&%

%9,¥R0 - - RRRIRIREIN 9,55R,909 R,955,R90 &%9 - ReE5,RU0&%)

S¥V¥Y 458 S¥Vq¥Y I58 - S¥Vq¥Y 58

- - - T¥9q¥YL 5% - CAAARL B2 - CAAARL B2

19,5¥%) R,%%9,5Y¥3 &,¥39,%%% R¥0,09%,345 R¥0,09%,35

(35,50 ¥,545) (R,%40,000) (R¥9,30%,5%5) (R¥9,30%,5%5)

LY,%¥9 - - q,33%,3% 40 93,%%9,%% 93,%3¥,5R%,3¥% - RRIY,ERE, IR

LLR L) - - 9,33¥,3%9, K 0% 93,%%9,%%% 93,%3¥,5R%,3¥% - QRRIY,GRE, IR

LY,%¥9 - - 9,33¥,3%9,K0R 93,%%9,%%% 93,%3¥,5R%,3¥% - RRIY,ERE VS

539,¥90,303 ©39,¥90,36% - 539,¥90,36%

- - - 539, ¥90,39% - 539,¥90,39 - 539,¥90,39

9,%%9 L,%R5,%9% 90,%03,9% 953,954, 953,954,

(18=,05Y4,3%R) (X,900,000) (153,954 3%R) A53,954,%R%)

(90,%19z,339) RATIRES AT 9 R3%,4R9,5%%

- - - (190,%¥9z5,339) V,RR],439,5%R V,RR],439,5%R

¥\s,00¥ - - 1,5R5,R9%,5Y 95 1%Y¥,R99 R, ¥0q,945,359 - RR¥0q,%U5359
- iy ireh it fafeshr ST Her wfaaeT STgER

EEIEE] EEIEE]
e RIE. A3 IRTONS
e

.08, e geteed
AdE Ublgrarad

ar
=



72 | ot afier wfdaed 000/ ve

olorG ydre fdazor

09 U 000 G I ATAE 095 TEH

(TFH ®.)

SEICE R G CEIE IR Ll ) G

S A=A 9,3%%,%45,¥0Y 9,%90,2%9,991
oib TIT AT AT 9,809,343 ¥00,%0
AT AT - -
qg FEAT AR O, ¥RY,R¥Y ?,¥15,%95
RIEECE] (39,230,%39) (19,59% 3¥%)
ok qaT BT @ (¥3,034) (4,593
FA G (§3,3%%,045) (180, 9R.0 %% ¥)
T @ (33,R93,433) (30,%09,%¥4q)
G YA JAT AEAT W qREqT st G=e 9,333,5'9,30% 9,94 %,¥53,3’%

Tt wUH TR TEE

MG A W (Jfg) /FH

U TS ARAT Rl HivaTd (4,5'90,5%0 3% (3,39%,955)
&% a1 fa<iimr SRAEEAT Placements (3,40%,3%4,539) (R¥0 5¥¥ 59%)
g qur fadia gearERes f{Uer wer qur qrad - -
UTEFER[g [QUHT ol g qTISl (9,%95,40%,33%) (403,335,%3%)
I GIRIER 3,3%¥5 459 (R,9%R,4¥9)

Ty e e gig/ (@& )
g% qur faxdr deamerers fad e - _
I T Sdbels fqd aieh - )

YEFHeeale dohed (Terd 9,598, %5 40,030 90
qradl 9,500,000,000 -
a7 TMIcae® 9,434,459 %,3%39%¥Y
AT FT YO ATS FoG TAEHAE ACH & TR T6E6 (10,209, ¥¥3,30V) ¥%0,%9%,005
EIREZSRSAR (345,953 93%) (LY, 9% 5 %]R)
T MAEEE CH & TR Y68 (30,4%0,33%,3¥R) 904,590, ¥9%
e maﬂm .............................................................
BIPER:HPEECE TgE HEER AR e
Sifgw A g4 aife farfaehr gy
Her ufdaeT SIgar
...... L P s o
BEIEEd BEICE] BEICEa RIS
ECAE RS RIS I
LS THGrarad
fafa:  Rowsi0%10%

W HGATS, A
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T faferefiare U e garE
T TR @S
T AT [T ITed AT

(‘L*]KO’OOOyOOO) -

SISl 9T ITHWT @ (0,339,303) (R55,99R)
TESAAT qIT JUHLU fahiare qred AT - -
qHd Wl @i (390,940) -
A FRT @R - -
AT FIOAT fashieTe 9T SRRTHT - -
S AT 30,9%¥ 000 %,0%¥5 49%
ATHTYT 9o - -
TN it W@ o gq TR (1,1¥R,R03,R4%) 4,\%%0 330
i wifaferefieme et w” yaw
AT AETE e - -
HOTTAH G - -
Subordinated ITRICAE®ETE qTe = -
Subordinated ITRICAEEH!  HThHIAT - -
AT ATAEE 9T 5,000,000 000 -
AT T - -
IS @ - -
ERIELEISRIIR Sk (90,%¥\95,339) -
fofim wifafaeiare s ge e Y4 9,23%,4%9,&%R -
TE qO TE JEAT WA I g/ (Td) (3,950,505 %) 999,530,943
R099 HMENT § WAH ANE AT TG AEH HISET ¥,350,555,330 ¥ 352,349, %98
HISaTqHT Wl TG qaT 8 GXedl Hieardqar fafam 3 - -
afad=ar sET
09c G FAAAT TE AT TE A6 %00,3%R £0¥ ¥,350,655,330
fdorar atrer ceilurer et w1 Jfdast 3fo[31 31rdict
A -HETH A THE FEE AT FeAE
Jfgy qoar g=e Aife ffaepr e
Her gidaeT 18R
&roft 1ot 2rat dog IRIG GoIeT oiictaof il wﬁr.u.m?}wammg
SEISED SEIRED BEINED EIGES

TR s T

fafq: R09zi0%10%

W, PIGATST, AU



74 | faopr afiier gfdaed 000/ ve

oldIc AT oldIG IRE 849
(TPH *.)
e Hieard 90,000 90,000
% qur fof SRERAT War Hiead 300,3%%,50¥ 205,9%3253
WA qAT eT AT I g TRH - _
a3 300,000,000 ¥ 93 93¥ ¥
kil %00, %0¥ ¥350,555,330
SIUTCT IEC ADBAT I2d! dloald 8.2
(TPH )

I ad ald ad¥

Y AT SHAT T AN ALAdT HioaTd ,59%,%%5,0%R 2,939,993
T fa aeREr age @i s fadies - -
U T FFATE YT gAAiFl THA qA 97T addiew - -

e q,5%R %5,0%R Q 939,03
d® aon fadi=r Iensxar PLACEMENTS 83
(THH T.)

I ad ald q¥

el dF dar fadior geATERAT MNUHT Placements 95,353, %9%,059 ©,95% 5% 399
fozeft @ dur fa<ior geemewar AUHT Placements - -
A e S AN Ee = -

STHAT 95,R53,¥\%,059 5,95 Y, 5RY¥,399
DERIVATIVE fddi<l 3uRdoies 88
(TPH %)

I ad ald q¥

NG FAeEaH aIiT haga
S s Swap - -
sl Swap = -
Forward exchange contract - -
I - -
NGH TR AR RGP
TSl X Swap - -
sl Swap = -
Forward exchange contract = -
I - -
SFT - -
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3163 RIUIR® JAFudiss 8y
(TFH T.)
LECAR I LK - ;

8.6.9 : 3R BRAMI GIIfol AT @ )

‘
g

KT ad

ST q Td W Gieard . }
a9 YR AT T TP AN AR aedT - }
I9 auel FIET - -
agelt qar fRar - -
TEAT Y@ TR T - i
G AP HioaTd - -

ABDETCNs f[Gud! bl an At 80

(TPH ')

Amortized Cost #T HTIH TXUHI Fal T9T FTIEL 3,329,30% 9 Y98 305 935
A S R AT g

FIT\E'%?F &g T 9,989 3% ¥,R49,9%%

Lez e i - )

e @A 3,39, 435,1 ¥% XY, 34%,3¥0

FVTPL |T HTYA TS Fal qar QT - _
Skl 9,435, 4 ¥% Y9¥ 34%,3¥0




76 | fwpr afier wfdaeT 000/ ve

8.10.9 : il a2 ATUEID! fAANOT - Ubfdd! 3MERdr TFH T
For fefw
gqrafad Har 3,9384%% 1 %9 33%,34%,933
gfafaed ot 3R %89 5% 945,50,%¥33
fo.ame. &1 qar aE &ar - -
B TS ol - -
FHAT oAl 99,55 ¥ %50 5% 093 ]33
I - -
ST ,RR9,3¥9,0%0 LR 4R, ¥5R
qred T S A TEH 49,09 TTRC
ESSRL R,RR930Y¥ 9\ RN LR 307 93%
8.10.2 : HaIl a2 ATUEID! fARATOT - HGIDY JMER AT TFH T
Jaelt &5 3,329,30% 9\ Y\9R,305,93%
AR T - -
EIRIEEEDE) - -
EELEEREIL - -
I - _
E= 1] R,RR930% 9\ RN L9R,305 93%
810.3 : ®ail a2 ATUEid! favciyor - Fdie! MR @ E.)
g
Iq A=A gEI 99%,9%9,94 Y ¥ 935,490

@l d% qur foi gRuERsl SuEq - -
ERICEECI LGN BRI - -
seadifee At Swetdl AT - -
frataesr grafead SrTeTdeeel fadrr - -
Hedl e frd - -
e faaraaer fadmr - -

HEITT THTET - -
7 forr 398 4%R,¥q9 WRY TR L&k
ST 9,307,999 Y% 305,935
& SRS - -

A%)

FA AT R,XR9,30%,9\A 4\R,305,13%

>
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8.0.8 : Q¥ ERI a2 (THH ')

‘
4P

R af

Tad & B Faedl

HEW q TA @H A - -
Jq qUHl AT & gIAHl AT T(LUH FFET

T9 qYHl ARl - -
Fgent qar fRar - -
TEAT Y@ TR THH - -
faaelt gorr fafe & afwad=ar ofn e g e - -
AT FETAHT Hie=Td - -

HE q TS TR AR ¥ R49,9%% -
Iq qUR FTET
e (fRar) 9§,533,53% ¥ _49,9%%
faeell wamw fafrmg & ofvadaar @fr em e srEw - -
A ATl Ao 39,99, %34 ¥,249,9%%
ST &9 1 g9 R9,98% %Y ¥,R49,R%
farausIg=a clomeit 8T
(TPH T.)
Amortized Cost |T WY XU [IGTIoERAT ST q,35%,0¥Y S¥O 9R3,5%3,5Y
FVTOCI T WY WU fIaraagedr = - -
S q,35%,9¥Y 5 ¥0 13,5R3,R5¥

8.C.9: Amortized Cost #T HATUG IR UMD fEIAUSIS=T clorell

(TPH *.)
E LD LICES i -
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AUDIT REPORT

FINANCIAL YEAR 2020/21



a member firm of ASNAF Group § SBC Global Alance

M.G.S. & Associates - e "

Chartered Accountants

Alliance

Independent Auditor's Report
To The Shareholders’ of Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited.

Opinion

We have audited the Financial Statements of M/s Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited, (hereinafier
referred to as “the Company ") which comprise Statement of Financial Position as at Ashad 31. 2078
(15" July 2021), Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and summary of significant
accounting policies and explanatory information, together with schedules to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements read together with significant accounting
policies and notes to accounts forming part of accounts present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at Ashad 31, 2078 (15" July 2021), its financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Institute of Chartered Accountants’ of Nepal (ICAN) Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained are sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Kev Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that, there are no other key audit
matters to communicate in our report. '

Emphasis of Matter
The Bank has made the provision of Employee Bonus for this year based on net profit excluding the

Interest income from Placement as required by Circular of Nepal Rastra Bank which has been
disclosed in Notes 3.20. Accordingly, provision for bonus has been decreased by Rs. 107.247.511. and
income tax, net income, Corporate social responsibility fund and shareholders “funds have been
increased by Rs. 3,174,253, Rs. 75.073.258. Rs. 750,732 and Rs. 74,322,525 respectively.

Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

GPO Box:8347, Kathmandu, Nepal, TelFax: +877-1-4102754. E-mail:mgsi@mgs.com.np
Located at: 723/67, Tankaprasad Ghumtl Sadak, Anamnagar |Eastern Gate of Singhdurbar), Kathmandu-29. Nepal



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with NAS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Responsibilities of Auditor for the audit of Financials Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole,

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
grror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations. or the
override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up

to cease to continue as a going concern.




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

On the basis of our examination, we further report that:

1.

2.

Partner

We have obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of audit.

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provision
of Companies Act, 2063, BAFIA, 2073 & NRB directives and conform to the books of account
of the company.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and from our
examination of the books of accounts of the company necessary for the purpose of audit, we
have not come across cases where the management group or any employees of the company
have acted contrary to legal provisions relating to accounts, or committed any misappropriation
or caused loss or damage to the company; and

We did not obtain any information indicating company’s activities which is prejudicial to the
interest of depositors.

In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the Company has
maintained adequate capital funds and adequate provisions for possible impairment of assets
in accordance with the directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

It appears that all the financial and other information and subject matters which is required to
be submitted to the shareholders as per prevalent laws has been provided.

We have not come across any action and situation that impair internal control relevant to the
Company's operation and fair presentation of the financial statements.

. The operation of the Company has been found satisfactory.

M.G.8 & Associates.
Chartered Accountants

Date: 27/09/2021
Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
UDIN: 210927CA0012574ws()
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As on Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)
Amount (In NPR)

NOTE CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Assets
Cash and Cash equivalent 41 600,279,604 4,380,888,230
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 1,879,968,042 9,127,773
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 18,283,476,081 8,784,824,317
Derivative financial instruments 4.4 - -
Other trading assets 4.5 - -
Loan and advances to B/Fls 4.6 - -
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 2,275,528,546 574,356,340
Investment securities 4.8 1,286,745,640 123,892,984
Current tax assets 4.9 - -
Investment in Subsidiaries 4.10 - -
Investment in associates 411 - -
Investment property 412 - -
Property and equipment 413 81,762,249 73,288,265
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.14 7,361,402 10,829,309
Deferred tax assets 4.15 - -
Other assets 4.16 8,480,787 11,221,621
Total Assets 24,423,602,351 13,968,428,839
Binaya Nath Neupane Ram Krishna Khatiwada Anuj Agarwal
DGM- RISK & OPERATIONS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHAIRMAN
As per our report of even date
Dhani Ram Sharma Chandra Prasad Dhakal Lal Mani Joshi FCA. Mahesh Guragain
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR Partner

M.G.S. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

DATE: September 20, 2021
PLACE: Kathmandu, Nepal
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Contd... STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Amount (In NPR)

NOTE CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Instituions 417 - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18 = -
Derivative financial instruments 419 - -
Deposits from customers 4.20 301,639,888 250,020,120
Borrowing 4.21 1,600,000,000 -
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 34,072,019 32,637,333
Provisions 4.22 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 4.15 1,258,894 1,138,156
Other liabilities 4.23 84,873,163 49,806,884
Debt securities issued 4.24 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - -
Total liabilities 2,021,843,964 333,602,493
Equity
Share capital 4.26 20,000,000,000 12,000,000,000
Share premium - -
Retained earnings 1,828,916,824 1,234,371,502
Reserves 4.27 572,841,563 400,454,844
Total equity attributable to equity holders 22,401,758,387 13,634,826,346
Non-controlling interest ° -
Total equity 22,401,758,387 13,634,826,346
Total liabilities and equity 24,423,602,351 13,968,428,839
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 162,485,482 -
Net assets value per share 112.01 113.62
Binaya Nath Neupane Ram Krishna Khatiwada Anuj Agarwal
DGM- RISK & OPERATIONS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHAIRMAN
As per our report of even date
Dhani Ram Sharma Chandra Prasad Dhakal Lal Mani Joshi FCA. Mahesh Guragain
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR Partner

M.G.S. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

DATE: September 20, 2021
PLACE: Kathmandu, Nepal
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Amount (In NPR)

NOTE CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Interest income 4.29 1,362,973,423 1,253,682,716
Interest expense 4.30 27,063,988 23,018,496
Net interest income 1,335,909,435 1,230,664,220
Fee and commission income 4.31 1,976,213 400,140
Fee and commission expense 4.32 42,035 25,813
Net fee and commission income 1,934,178 374,327
Net interest, fee and commission income 1,337,843,613 1,231,038,547
Net trading income 4.33 - -
Other operating income 4.34 = -
Total operating income 1,337,843,613 1,231,038,547
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.35 16,823,829 4,951,795
Net operating income 1,321,019,784 1,226,086,752
Operating expense
Personnel expenses 4.36 83,782,390 79,913,073
Other operating expenses 4.37 31,272,533 29,144,448
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.38 15,641,874 15,331,595
Operating Profit 1,190,322,987 1,101,697,636
Non operating income 4.39 7,425,945 108,694,207
Non operating expense 4.40 - 173,502
Profit before income tax 1,197,748,932 1,210,218,341
Income tax expense 4.41 360,338,560 363,073,156
Current Tax 360,217,822 363,796,235
Deferred Tax 120,738 (723,079)
Profit for the period 837,410,372 847,145,185
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank 837,410,372 847,145,185
Non-controlling interest - -
Profit for the period 837,410,372 847,145,185
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 5.35 7.06
Diluted earnings per share 5.35 7.06
Binaya Nath Neupane Ram Krishna Khatiwada Anuj Agarwal
DGM- RISK & OPERATIONS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHAIRMAN
As per our report of even date
Dhani Ram Sharma Chandra Prasad Dhakal Lal Mani Joshi FCA. Mahesh Guragain
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR Partner

DATE: September 20, 2021
PLACE: Kathmandu, Nepal

M.G.S. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)
Amount (In NPR)

NOTE CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Profit for the year 837,410,372 847,145,185
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Fair value reserve (Investment in equity instrument):

Net change in fair value = -

Net amount transferred to profit or loss o -
Net gain (loss) on revalution - -
Cash flow hedges:

Effective portion of changes in fair value - -

Net Amount reclassified to profit or loss - -
Net actuarial gain/loss on defined benefit plans = -
Income Tax relating to all components of Other Comprehensive Income = -
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax - -
Total comprehensive income for the period 837,410,372 847,145,185
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Equity holders of the Bank 837,410,372 847,145,185

Non-controlling interest ° -
Total comprehensive income for the period 837,410,372 847,145,185

Binaya Nath Neupane Ram Krishna Khatiwada Anuj Agarwal
DGM- RISK & OPERATIONS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHAIRMAN
As per our report of even date
Dhani Ram Sharma Chandra Prasad Dhakal Lal Mani Joshi FCA. Mahesh Guragain
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR DIRECTOR Partner

M.G.S. & Associates
Chartered Accountants

DATE: September 20, 2021
PLACE: Kathmandu, Nepal
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

Balance at Shrawan 1, 2076

SHARE

CAPITAL

12,000,000,000

EXCHANGE
EQUALISATION
RESERVE

SHARE
PREMIUM

GENERAL
RESERVE

- 157,794,132 -

Adjustment/Restatement
Adjusted/Restated balance at Shrawan 1, 2076
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Fair value reserve (Investment in equity instrument):
Net gain (loss) on revalution
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benfit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial
assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognised in equity
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid

12,000,000,000

- 157,794,132 -

228,943,366

Total contributions by and distributions

Balance at Ashad end 2077

12,000,000,000

- 386,737,498 -

Balance at Shrawan 1, 2077

12,000,000,000

- 386,737,498 -

Adjustment/Restatement
Adjusted/Restated balance at Shrawan 1, 2077
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Fair value reserve (Investment in equity instrument)
Net gain (loss) on revalution
Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benfit plans
Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge
Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial
assets of foreign operation)
Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to reserve during the year
Transfer from reserve during the year
Transactions with owners, directly recognised in equity
Share issued
Share based payments
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid

12,000,000,000

8,000,000,000

- 386,737,498 -

167,482,074

Total contributions by and distributions

8,000,000,000

Balance at Ashad end 2078

20,000,000,000

- 554,219,572 -

Ram Krishna Khatiwada
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Binaya Nath Neupane
DGM- RISK & OPERATIONS

DATE: September 20, 2021
PLACE: Kathmandu, Nepal

Anuj Agarwal
CHAIRMAN

Dhani Ram Sharma
DIRECTOR
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Amount (In NPR)

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BANK

REGULATORY FAIR VALUE REVALUATION RETAINED OTHER NON- TOTAL
RESERVE RESERVE RESERVE EARNING RESERVE CONTROLLING EQUITY
INTEREST
67,490 - - 623,219,332 7,889,707 12,788,970,661 - 12,788,970,661
67,490 - - 623,219,332 7,889,707 12,788,970,661 - 12,788,970,661
847,145,185 847,145,185 - 847,145,185
- - - 847,145,185 - 847,145,185 - 847,145,185
(11,843) 2,661,843 8,421,992 240,015,358 240,015,358
(238,654,858) (2,650,000) (241,304,858) (241,304,858)
55,647 - - 1,234,371,502 13,661,699 13,634,826,346 - 13,634,826,346
55,647 - - 1,234,371,502 13,661,699 13,634,826,346 - 13,634,826,346
55,647 - - 1,234,371,502 13,661,699 13,634,826,346 - 13,634,826,346
837,410,372 837,410,372 - 837,410,372
- - - 837,410,372 - 837,410,372 - 837,410,372
1,427 5,698,573 10,603,218 183,785,292 183,785,292
(178,085,292) (5,700,000) (183,785,292) (183,785,292)
(70,478,331) 7,929,521,669 7,929,521,669
. . - (70,478,331) - 7,929,521,669 - 7,929,521,669
57,074 . - 1,828,916,824 18,564,917 22,401,758,387 - 22,401,758,387

Chandra Prasad Dhakal
DIRECTOR

Lal Mani Joshi
DIRECTOR

As per our report of even date

FCA. Mahesh Guragain
Partner
M.G.S. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)

PARTICULARS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received

Fees and other income received

Dividend received

Receipts from other operating activities

Interest paid

Commission and fees paid

Cash payment to employees

Other expense paid

Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Other trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions

Loans and advances to customers

CURRENT YEAR

1,329,958,405
1,976,213
7,425,945
(21,930,631)
(42,035)
(63,244,058)
(31,272,533)
1,222,871,306

(1,870,840,269)
(9,502,365,821)

(1,718,502,339)

Amount (In NPR)

PREVIOUS YEAR

1,270,961,711
400,140

2,418,618
(17,874,249)
(25,813)
(70,790,664)
(30,607,451)

- 1,154,482,292

(3,319,188)
(240,844,874)

(503,338,939)

Other assets 3,248,567 (2,742,547)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities

Due to bank and financial institutions - -
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Deposit from customers 51,619,768 50,020,120
Borrowings 1,600,000,000 -
Other liabilities 12,525,581 6,362,144
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid (10,201,443,207) 460,619,008
Income taxes paid (358,783,135) (354,748,592)
Net cash flow from operating activities (10,560,226,342) 105,870,416

Binaya Nath Neupane Ram Krishna Khatiwada
DGM- RISK & OPERATIONS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Dhani Ram Sharma Chandra Prasad Dhakal
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DATE: September 20, 2021
PLACE: Kathmandu, Nepal

Anuj Agarwal
CHAIRMAN

Lal Mani Joshi
DIRECTOR

As per our report of even date

FCA. Mahesh Guragain
Partner
M.G.S. & Associates
Chartered Accountants



Contd... STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

PARTICULARS

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities
Purchase of property and equipment

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets
Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties
Interest received

Dividend received
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CURRENT YEAR

(1,150,000,000)

(20,337,203)

(310,750)

20,744,000

Amount (In NPR)

PREVIOUS YEAR

(988,179)

6,748,516

Net cash used in investing activities

(1,149,903,953)

5,760,337

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities
Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares

Dividend paid

Interest paid

Other receipt/payment

8,000,000,000

(70,478,331)

Net cash from financing activities

7,929,521,669

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1, 2077

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

(3,780,608,626)
4,380,888,230

111,630,753
4,269,257,477

Cash and cash equivalents at Ashad end 2078

600,279,604

4,380,888,230

Binaya Nath Neupane
DGM- RISK & OPERATIONS

Dhani Ram Sharma
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

DATE: September 20, 2021
PLACE: Kathmandu, Nepal

Ram Krishna Khatiwada
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Chandra Prasad Dhakal

Anuj Agarwal
CHAIRMAN

Lal Mani Joshi
DIRECTOR

As per our report of even date

FCA. Mahesh Guragain

Partner

M.G.S. & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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4.1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT Amount (In NPR)
Cash in hand 10,000 10,000
Balances with B/Fls 300,269,604 208,143,983
Money at call and short notice - -
Other 300,000,000 4,172,734,247
Total 600,279,604 4,380,888,230

4.2

DUE FROM NEPAL RASTRA BANK Amount (In NPE)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Statutory balances with NRB 1,879,968,042 9,127,773
Securities purchased under resale agreement - -

Other deposit and receivable from NRB - -

Total 1,879,968,042 9,127,773
PLACEMENTS WITH BANK AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS Amount (In nglf;

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Placement with domestic B/Fls 18,283,476,081 8,784,824,317
Placement with foreign B/Fls = -

Less: Allowances for impairment -

Total 18,283,476,081 8,784,824,317
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Amount (In ngl.:;

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Held for trading
Interest rate swap = -
Currency swap = -
Forward exchange contract = -
Others o -

Held for risk management

Interest rate swap = -
Currency swap = -
Forward exchange contract - -
Other 5 -
Total = -
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OTHER TRADING ASSETS 4.5

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Treasury bills = R
Government bonds = -
NRB Bonds o -
Domestic Corporate bonds o -
Equities o -
Other o -
Total - -
Pledged = R
Non-pledged o -

LOAN AND ADVANCES TO B/Fls 4.6

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Loans to microfinance institutions = -
Other = -
Less: Allowances for impairment = -
Total - -

4.6.1 ALLOWANCES FOR IMPAIRMENT
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Balance at Shrawan 1 - -
Impairment loss for the year: = -
Charge for the year 5 R
Recoveries/reversal o R
Amount written off o -

Balance at Ashad end - -

LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS 4.7
Amount (In NPR)
Loan and advances measured at amortized cost 2,297,304,171 579,308,136
Less: Impairment allowances
Collective impairment 21,775,625 4,951,796
Individual impairment = -
Net amount 2,275,528,546 574,356,340

Loan and advances measured at FVTPL - -
Total 2,275,528,546 574,356,340
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4.7.1 ANALYSIS OF LOAN AND ADVANCES - BY PRODUCT

Amount (In NPR)

Product
Term loans 2,137,594,541 336,359,133
Overdraft 39,967,876 158,820,433
Trust receipt/Import loans - -
Demand and other working capital loans = -
Personal residential loans - -
Real estate loans - -
Margin lending loans - -
Hire purchase loans - -
Deprived sector loans - -
Bills purchased = -
Staff loans 119,684,680 84,072,923
Other = -
Sub total 2,297,247,097 579,252,489

Interest receivable 57,074 55,647

Grand total 2,297,304,171 579,308,136

4.7.2 ANALYSIS OF LOAN AND ADVANCES - BY CURRENCY

Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Nepalese rupee
Indian rupee
United State dollar
Great Britain pound
Euro

Japenese yen
Chinese yuan
Other

2,297,304,171 579,308,136

Total

2,297,304,171 579,308,136

4.7.3 ANALYSIS OF LOAN AND ADVANCES - BY COLLATERAL

Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Secured
Movable/immovable assets
Gold and silver
Guarantee of domestic B/Fls
Government guarantee
Guarantee of international rated bank
Collateral of export document
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt
Collateral of Governement securities
Counter guarantee
Personal guarantee

Other collateral

119,741,754 84,128,570

2,177,562,417 495,179,566

Subtotal

Unsecured

2,297,304,171 579,308,136

Grant Total

2,297,304,171 579,308,136
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4.7.4 ALLOWANCES FOR IMPAIRMENT
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Specific allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 = -
Impairment loss for the year: = -

Charge for the year - -

Recoveries/reversal during the year - -
Write-offs = R
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment - -
Other movement - -

Balance at Ashad end - -

Collective allowances for impairment

Balance at Shrawan 1 4,951,796 -

Impairment loss for the year: - -
Charge/(reversal) for the year 16,823,829 4,951,796

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment - -

Other movement - R

Balance at Ashad end 21,775,625 4,951,796

Total allowances for impairment 21,775,625 4,951,796
INVESTMENT SECURITIES 4.8
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Investment securities measured at amortized cost 1,286,745,640 123,892,984

Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI - -
Total 1,286,745,640 123,892,984

4.8.1 INVESTMENT SECURITIES MEASURED AT AMORTIZED COST
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Debt securities - -
Government bonds 1,286,745,640 123,892,984
Government treasury bills - -
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds - -
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments - -
Other - -
Less: Specific allowances for impairment = -
Total 1,286,745,640 123,892,984

4.8.2 INVESTMENT IN EQUITY MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Equity instruments - -
Quoted equity securities - -
Unquoted equity securities - -

Total - -
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4.8.3 INFORMATION RELATING TO INVESTMENT IN EQUITIES
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Investment in quoted equity - -
Investment in unquoted equity = -
Total - -

4.9
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

CURRENT TAX ASSETS / LIABILITIES

Current tax assets
Current year income tax assets 326,106,264 330,000,000
Tax assets of prior periods - 899,999

Current tax liabilities

Current year income tax liabilities 360,178,283 363,537,332
Tax liabilities of prior periods - -
Total 34,072,019 32,637,333
4.10
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES Amount (n HE

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Investment in quoted subsidiaries - -

Investment in unquoted subsidiaries - -

Total investment o -

Less: Impairment allowances - -

Net carrying amount - -

4.10.1 INVESTMENT IN QUOTED SUBSIDIARIES
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Total - -

4.10.2 INVESTMENT IN UNQUOTED SUBSIDIARIES
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Total - -
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4.10.3 INFORMATION RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES OF THE BANK
Amount (In NPR)

PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP HELD
BY THE BANK

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Total - -

4.10.4 NON CONTROLLING INTEREST OF THE SUBSIDIARIES
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Equity interest held by NCI (%)

Profit/(loss) allocated during the year

Accumulated balances of NCI as on Ashad end........

Dividend paid to NCI

Total = -

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

4.11
Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Investment in Quoted Associates

Investment in Unquoted Associates

Total investment o -

Less: Impairment Allowances

Net Carrying Amount - -

4.11.1 INVESTMENT IN QUOTED ASSOCIATES
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Total - -

4.11.2 INVESTMENT IN UNQUOTED ASSOCIATES

Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Total - -

4.11.3 INFORMATION RELATING TO ASSOCIATES OF THE BANK
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Total - -
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4.11.4 EQUITY VALUE OF ASSOCIATES

Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Total

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties measured at fair value

Balance as on Shrawan 1
Addition/disposal during the year
Net changes in fair value during the year

Adjustment/Transfer

CURRENT YEAR

412
Amount (In NPR)

PREVIOUS YEAR

Net amount

Investment properties measured at cost
Balance as on Shrawan 1
Addition/disposal during the year
Adjustment/transfer

Accumulated depreciation

Accumulated impairment loss

Net amount

Total
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GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 4.14

Amount (In NPR)
PARTICULARS GOODWILL SOFTWARE

PURCHASED DEVELOPED

Cost

As on Shrawan 1, 2076 - 15,618,700 - - - 15,618,700
Addition during the Year - -
Acquisition - - - - - -
Capitalization - _
Disposal during the year - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - _
Balance as on Ashad end 2077 - 15,618,700 - - 15,618,700 15,618,700

Addition during the Year - -
Acquisition - 310,750 - - 310,750 -
Capitalization - -
Disposal during the year - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - -
Balance as on Ashad end 2078 - 15,929,450 - - 15,929,450 15,618,700

Amortization and Impairment

As on Shrawan 1, 2076 - 1,019,598 - - - 1,019,598
Amortization charge for the Year - 3,769,793 - - - 3,769,793
Impairment for the year - -
Disposals - -
Adjustment - -
As on Ashad end 2077 - 4,789,391 - - 4,789,391 4,789,391
Amortization charge for the Year 3,778,657 3,778,657 -
Impairment for the year - -
Disposals - -
Adjustment - -
As on Ashad end 2078 8,568,048 8,568,048 4,789,391

Capital Work in Progress - - -

Net Book Value

As on Ashad end 2076 - 14,599,102 - - 14,599,102 -
As on Ashad end 2077 - 10,829,309 - - 10,829,309 14,599,102
As on Ashad end 2078 - 7,361,402 - - 7,361,402 10,829,309




NIFRA ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 | 117

DEFERRED TAX 4.15

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR

DEFERRED DEFERRED NET DEFERRED
TAX ASSETS TAX LIABILITIES TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES

Deferred tax on temporory differences on following items

Loan and Advance to B/FIs -
Loans and advances to customers -
Investment properties -

Investment securities -

Property & equipment - 4,970,746 4,970,746
Employees defined benefit plan - - -
Lease liabilities 1,068,709 - (1,068,709)
Provisions - B -
Other temporory differences 2,643,143 - (2,643,143)
Deferred tax on temporory differences 3,711,852 4,970,746 1,258,894

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -

Net Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Ashad end 2078 1,258,894
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2077 1,138,156
Origination/(Reversal) during the year 120,738
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss 120,738

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income -

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised directly in equity -

PREVIOUS YEAR

DEFERRED DEFERRED NET DEFERRED
TAX ASSETS TAX LIABILITIES TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILITIES

Deferred tax on temporory differences on following items

Loan and Advance to B/Fls -
Loans and advances to customers -
Investment properties -

Investment securities -

Property & equipment - 3,468,923 3,468,923
Employees defined benefit plan - - -
Lease liabilities 734,032 - (734,032)
Provisions - - -
Other temporory differences 1,596,735 - (1,596,735)
Deferred tax on temporory differences 2,330,767 3,468,923 1,138,157

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses -

Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate -

Net Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Ashad end 2077 1,138,157
Deferred tax (asset)/liabilities as on Shrawan 1, 2076 1,861,235
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (723,079)
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in profit or loss (723,079)

Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in other comprehensive income -
Deferred tax expense/(income) recognised in directly in equity -
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OTHER ASSETS 4.16

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Assets held for sale = R
Other non banking assets - -

Bills receivable - -

Accounts receivable 23,550 14,949
Accrued income - -
Prepayments and deposit 1,228,029 1,267,335
Income tax deposit - -
Deferred employee expenditure 6,707,337 6,199,605
Other 521,871 3,739,732
Total 8,480,787 11,221,621
DUE TO BANK AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS Amount (in h‘l‘;;)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Money market deposits o -
Interbank borrowing = -
Other deposits from BFls o -
Settlement and clearing accounts = -
Other deposits from BFls = R
Total - -

DUE TO NEPAL RASTRA BANK 4.18

Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Refinance from NRB - -
Standing Liquidity Facility - -
Lender of last report facility from NRB - -
Securities sold under repurchase agreements - -
Other payable to NRB - -
Total - -

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 4.19

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Held For Trading
Interest Rate Swap = -
Currency Swap = -
Forward Exchange Contract - -
Others = -
Held For Risk Management
Interest Rate Swap = -
Currency Swap o -
Forward Exchange Contract = -
Other = -
Total o -
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DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS 4.20

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Institutions Customers:

Term Deposits 250,000,000 250,000,000
Call Deposits - -
Current Deposits 51,639,888 20,120.00
Others - -

Individual Customers:
Term Deposits - -
Saving Deposits - -
Current Deposits - -
Other - -
Total 301,639,888 250,020,120

4.20.1 CURRENCY WISE ANALYSIS OF DEPOSIT FROM CUSTOMERS

Amount (In NPR)

Nepalese Rupee 301,639,888 250,020,120
Indian Rupee - -

United State Dollar - -
Great Britain Pound = -
Euro = -
Japenese Yen - -

Chinese Yuan - -

Other - -
Total 301,639,888 250,020,120
BORROWING 4.1

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Domestic Borrowing
Nepal Government - R

Other Institutions 1,600,000,000 -
Other - -
Sub total 1,600,000,000 -

Foreign Borrowing
Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions - -
Multilateral Development Banks - -
Other Institutions - -
Sub total - -
Total 1,600,000,000 -
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PROVISIONS

4.22
Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Provisions For Redundancy = -
Provision For Restructuring = -
Pending Legal Issues And Tax Litigation - -
Onerous Contracts = -
Other = -
Total = -

4.22.1 MOVEMENT IN PROVISION
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Balance at Shrawan 1 - -
Provisions made during the year - -
Provisions used during the year - -
Provisions Reversed during the year - -

Unwind of Discount - -

Balance at Ashad end - -

OTHER LIABILITIES 4.23

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Liability for employees defined benefit obligations - -
Liability for long-service leave 4,691,669 2,777,258
Short-term employee benefits - -

Bills payable = -
Creditors and accruals 1,605,877 976,297
Interest payable on deposit 5,089,521 5,144,247

Interest payable on borrowing - -
Liabilities on defered grant income - -
Unpaid Dividend = -
Liabilities under Finance Lease - -

Employee bonus payable 13,919,313 3,848,130
Other
Unearned Income 43,518,563 27,388,563
TDS & VAT Payables 2,690,351 2,291,845
Deferred Lease Payable 3,562,362 2,446,775
Others 9,795,508 4,933,769
Total 84,873,163 49,806,884

4.23.1 DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Present value of unfunded obligations - -
Present value of funded obligations - -
Total present value of obligations - -
Fair value of plan assets - -
Present value of net obligations - -
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations = -
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4.23.2 PLAN ASSETS

Plan assets comprise
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Equity Securities - -
Government Bonds - -
Bank deposit - -
Other - -
Total - -

Actual return on plan assets

4.23.3 MOVEMENT IN THE PRESENT VALUE OF DEFINED BENEFIT

OBLIGATIONS
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1 - -
Actuarial losses - -
Benefits paid by the plan = -

Current service costs and interest - -

Defined benefit obligations at Ashad end = -

4.23.4 MOVEMENT IN THE FAIR VALUE OF PLAN ASSETS
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1 - -
Contributions paid into the plan - -
Benefits paid during the year - -
Actuarial (losses) gains - -
Expected return on plan assets - -

Fair value of plan assets at Ashad end o -

4.23.5 AMOUNT RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Current service costs - -
Interest on obligation - -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Total - -

4.23.6 AMOUNT RECOGNISED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Acturial (gain)/loss = -
Total o -
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4.23.7 ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Discount rate 9% 9%

Expected return on plan asset - -

Future salary increase 6% 6%

Withdrawal rate 7% 7%
DEBT SECURITIES ISSUED 4.24
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss - -
Debt securities issued at amortised cost - -
Total - -

SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES 4.25

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Redeemable preference shares - -
Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities component) - -
Other - -
Total - -

SHARE CAPITAL 4.26

Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Ordinary shares 20,000,000,000 12,000,000,000
Convertible preference shares (equity component only) - -
Irredemable preference shares (equity component only)

Perpetual debt (equity component only) = -
Total 20,000,000,000 12,000,000,000

4.26.1 ORDINARY SHARES
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Authorized Capital

400,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 40,000,000,000 40,000,000,000
Issued Capital

200,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 20,000,000,000 20,000,000,000
Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

200,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 100 each 20,000,000,000 12,000,000,000

Total 20,000,000,000 12,000,000,000
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4.26.2 ORDINARY SHARE OWNERSHIP
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

PERCENT AMOUNT PERCENT AMOUNT

Domestic Ownership

Nepal Government 10.00% 2,000,000,000 16.67% 2,000,000,000
“A” class licensed institutions 20.89% 4,178,300,000 34.82% 4,178,300,000
Other licensed intitutions 0.05% 10,000,000 0.08% 10,000,000
Other Institutions 18.97% 3,794,200,000 31.62% 3,794,200,000
Public 40.00% 8,000,000,000 0.00% -
Other 10.09% 2,017,500,000 16.81% 2,017,500,000
Foreign ownership - -
Total 100% 20,000,000,000 100% 12,000,000,000
RESERVES 4.27
Amount (In NPR)
Statutory general reserve 554,219,572 386,737,498
Exchange equilisation reserve - -
Corporate social responsibility reserve 15,641,334 12,967,230

Capital redemption reserve - -
Regulatory reserve 57,074 55,647
Investment adjustment reserve - -
Capital reserve - -
Assets revaluation reserve = -
Fair value reserve - -
Dividend equalisation reserve - -
Actuarial gain - -
Special reserve - -

Other reserve - R

Staff Training Fund 2,923,583 694,469

Total 572,841,563 400,454,844
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 4.28
Amount (In NPR)

Contingent liabilities 162,453,358 -

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 32,124 -

Capital commitment - -
Lease Commitment - -
Litigation - -
Total 162,485,482 -

4.28.1 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Acceptance and documentary credit 162,453,358 -
Bills for collection - -
Forward exchange contracts - -
Guarantees - -
Underwriting commitment - -
Other commitments - -
Total 162,453,358 -
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4.28.2 UNDRAWN AND UNDISBURSED FACILITIES
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Undisbursed amount of loans - -
Undrawn limits of overdrafts 32,124 -
Undrawn limits of credit cards - -
Undrawn limits of letter of credit - -
Undrawn limits of guarantee - -
Total 32,124 -

4.28.3 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the bank but provision has not been made in financial statements
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for - -
Approved but not contracted for = -
Sub total - -
Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for - -
Approved but not contracted for - N
Sub total o -
Total o -

4.28.4 LEASE COMMITMENTS
Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease,

where the bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - -
Later than 5 years - -

Sub total - -

Finance lease commitments
Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease,
where the bank is lessee
Not later than 1 year - -
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years - -
Later than 5 years - -
Sub total - -
Grand total - -

4.28.5 LITIGATION
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Total - -
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INTEREST INCOME 4.29
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Cash and cash equivalent - 34

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank - -

Placement with bank and financial institutions 1,219,103,774 1,212,854,415
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions 1,856,247 -
Loans and advances to customers 98,672,402 24,393,959
Investment securities 33,596,656 7,941,500
Loan and advances to staff 9,744,344 8,492,808
Other - -
Total interest income 1,362,973,423 1,253,682,716
INTEREST EXPENSE 4.30
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Due to bank and financial institutions

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Deposits from customers 23,500,003 23,018,496
Borrowing 3,563,985 -
Debt securities issued

Subordinated liabilities

Other

Total interest expense 27,063,988 23,018,496

FEES AND COMMISSION INCOME 4.31
Amount (In NPR)

Loan administration fees 200,000 300,000.00

Service fees 1,125,995 -

Consortium fees - -
Commitment fees - -
DD/TT/Swift fees - -
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees - -
Prepayment and swap fees = -
Investment banking fees - -
Asset management fees - -
Brokerage fees - -
Remittance fees - -
Commission on letter of credit 649,813 -
Commission on guarantee contracts issued - -
Commission on share underwriting/issue = -
Locker rental ° -
Other fees and commission income 405 100,140
Total fees and Commission Income 1,976,213 400,140
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FEES AND COMMISSION EXPENSE 4.32

Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

ATM management fees
VISA/Master card fees

Guarantee commission

Brokerage

DD/TT/Swift fees 17,750 745
Remittance fees and commission - -
Other fees and commission expense 24,285 25,068
Total fees and Commission Expense 42,035 25,813

NET TRADING INCOME 4.33

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Changes in fair value of trading assets = -
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets = -
Interest income on trading assets © -
Dividend income on trading assets - -
Gain/loss foreign exchange translation - -
Other < -

Net trading income - -

OTHER OPERATING INCOME 4.34

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Foreign exchange revaluation gain - -
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities = -
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties = -
Dividend on equity instruments - -
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment - -
Gain/loss on sale of investment property - -
Operating lease income - -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - -
Locker rent = -
Other - -
Total - -

IMPAIRMENT CHARGE/(REVERSAL) FOR LOAN AND OTHER LOSSES 4.35

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/Fls
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 16,823,829 4,951,795

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment

(
(
(
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial institutions
(
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets

(

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties

Total 16,823,829 4,951,795
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PERSONNEL EXPENSE 4.36

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Salary 24,368,217 32,118,041
Allowances 33,827,308 27,834,143
Gratuity expense 1,573,616 1,868,182
Provident fund 1,886,821 1,891,804
Uniform - -
Training & development expense 52,834 523,346
Leave encashment 4,626,094 4,687,212
Medical - -
Insurance 152,902 174,262
Employees incentive - 5,427,640

Cash-settled share-based payments - -

Pension expense = -

Finance expense under NFRS 3,130,991 1,540,313
Other expenses related to staff 244,294 -
Subtotal 69,863,077 76,064,943
Employees bonus 13,919,313 3,848,130
Grand total 83,782,390 79,913,073
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSE 4.37
Amount (In NPR)
Directors’ fee 1,102,000 850,000
Directors’ expense 267,696 65,138
Auditors’ remuneration 226,000 226,000
Other audit related expense 201,305 200,850
Professional and legal expense 263,981 1,358,695
Office administration expense 13,637,188 13,648,682
Operating lease expense 9,223,405 9,400,211
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate social responsibility expense 5,700,000 2,650,000
Onerous lease provisions - -
Other 650,958 749,872
Total 31,272,533 29,144,448
DEPRECIATION & AMORTISATION 4.38
Amount (In NPR)
Depreciation on property and equipment 11,863,217 11,561,802
Depreciation on investment property - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 3,778,657 3,769,793
Total 15,641,874 15,331,595
NON OPERATING INCOME 4.39
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Recovery of loan written off - -
Other income 7,425,945 108,694,207
Total 7,425,945 108,694,207
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NON OPERATING EXPENSE 4.40

Amount (In NPR)
CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
Loan written off - -

Redundancy provision - -

Expense of restructuring - -

Other expense - 173,502

Total - 173,502

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 4.41
Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Current tax expense

Current year 360,178,283 363,537,332
Adjustments for prior years 39,539 258,903
Deferred tax expense

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 120,738 (723,079)
Changes in tax rate - -
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - -
Total income tax expense 360,338,560 363,073,156

4.41.1 RECONCILIATION OF TAX EXPENSE AND ACCOUNTING PROFIT
Amount (In NPR)

Profit before tax 1,197,748,932 1,210,218,341
Tax amount at tax rate of 30% 359,324,680 363,065,502
Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose 1,381,084 1,602,973
Less: Tax effect on exempt income = -
Less: Tax effect on other items 367,204 1,595,319
Total income tax expense 360,338,560 363,073,156

Effective tax rate 30% 30%




STATEMENT OF DISTRIBUTABLE PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended Ashad 31, 2078 (July 15, 2021)
(As per NRB Regulation)
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Amount (In NPR)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss 837,410,372 847,145,185
Appropriations:

a. General reserve (167,482,074) (228,943,366)
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund = -
c. Capital redemption reserve - -
d. Corporate social responsibility fund (8,374,104) (7,727,523)
e. Employees’ training fund (2,229,114) (694,469)
f. Other - -
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment 659,325,080 609,779,827
Regulatory adjustment :

a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) (1,427) 11,843
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) - -
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) - -
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/resersal (+) - -
e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+) - -
f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+) - -
g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) - -
h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) - -
i. Other (+/-) - -
Distributable profit or (loss) 659,323,654 609,791,670
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1. Reporting Entity
Nepal Infrastructure Bank Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“the Bank”) is a public limited company incorporated on June
8, 2018 under the Companies Act, 2063 of Nepal. The bank
is licensed as a National level Infrastructure Development
Bank by Nepal Rastra Bank (the Central Bank of Nepal) and
has been in operation since March 6, 2019. It's registered
office is at Kathmandu-10, Nepal. The Bank’s ordinary

shares are listed in the Nepal Stock Exchange Limited.

Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards
(NFRS), as published by Accounting Standard Board
(ASB), Nepal and pronounced by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), on going concern basis and in

the format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

2.2 Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements
The Bank follows the Nepalese financial year based on the
Nepalese calendar. Reporting Period is a period from the
first day of Shrawan of any year to the last day of Ashad
of the next year. The corresponding dates for the English
calendar are as follows:

Relevant Nepalese

Calendar

English

Calendar

Financial
Statement

Comparative SFP Date 31 Ashadh 2077 15 July 2020
Comparative Reporting 1 Shrawan 2076- 17 July 2019-
Period 31 Ashadh 2077 15 July 2020
SFP date 31 Ashadh 2078 15 July 2021
Reporting Period 1 Shrawan 2077- 16 July 2020-
31 Ashadh 2078 15 July 2021

The financial statements have been approved and authorized
for issue by the board of directors as per its decision dated
20.09.2021 and have been recommended for its approval at

the Annual General Meeting.

Comparative reporting period figures have been restated/
reclassified wherever necessary by the standards/
regulations and/or for better presentation.
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Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupee
(NPR), which is the Bank's functional currency. The figures

are rounded to nearest integer, except otherwise indicated.

Use of estimates, assumptions and judgments

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with NFRS
requires the Bank’s management to make critical judgments,
estimates and assumptions such that could potentially have
a material impact on the reported financial figures. These
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported

amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

On an ongoing basis the management reviews these
estimates and underlying assumptions to ensure that
they continue to be relevant and reasonable. Revisions to

accounting estimates are recognized prospectively.

The most significant areas of assumptions and estimation
applied in the application of accounting policies that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements are listed hereinafter

Going Concern

Fair value of financial instruments

Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
Useful economic life of property and equipment

Taxation and deferred tax

Provisions for liabilities and contingencies

Changes in accounting policies
There are no any significant changes in accounting policies

during the period.

New Standards in Issue but Not Yet Effective

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation, NAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures have been applied. NRFS 9 has
been complied for the classification of Financial Instruments.
NAS 17 has been complied in accounting for the lease

expenses.

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing
standards and interpretations have been issued by IASB after
the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates.
Those become applicable when ASB, Nepal incorporates
them within NFRS.
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2.7

Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities
are non-current, and the impact of the discounting is

material.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Measurement

The assets and liabilities reported in the financial
statements of the Bank are prepared following the
accrual method of accounting and the historical cost

basis, except where otherwise stated.

Basis of Consolidation

Business Combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Bank. The cost
of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, together
with the fair value of any contingent consideration
payable. The excess of the cost of acquisition over
the fair value of the Bank’s share of the identifiable net
assets and contingent liabilities acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets and contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognized directly

in the income statement.

The Bank does not have any subsidiary as on the

reporting date.

Non-Controlling Interest (NCI)
Non-controlling interests are measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interest’'s proportionate

share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities, including structured entities,
which the Bank controls. The Bank controls an entity
when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
investee. The assessment of power is based on the
Bank’s practical ability to direct the relevant activities
of the entity unilaterally for the Banks’s own benefit and
is subject to reassessment if and when one or more of
the elements of control change. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which the Bank effectively
obtains control. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases, and where any interest in the
subsidiary remains, this is re-measured to its fair value

and the change in carrying amount is recognized in the
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income statement.

Loss of Control:
Bank does not have any subsidiary, hence not applicable to
the bank.

Special Purpose Entity (SPE)

A special purpose entity is an entity that has been designed
so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in
deciding who controls the entity. Contractual arrangements
determine the rights and therefore relevant activities of the
special purpose entity. Special purpose entities are generally
created to achieve a narrow and well-defined objective with
restrictions around their activities. Special purpose entities
are consolidated when the substance of the relationship
between the Bank and the special purpose entity indicates
the Bank has power over the contractual relevant activities
of the special purpose entity, is exposed to variable returns,

and can use that power to affect the variable return exposure.

The Bank does not have any special purpose entity as on the

reporting date.

Transaction Elimination on Consolidation
The Bank does not have any subsidiary, hence no
financial statements and

consolidation  of resulting

transactions elimination.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the total amount
of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial
institutions, money at call and short notice, and highly liquid
financial assets with original maturities of three months
or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used
by the licensed institution in the management of its short-

term commitments.

Explanatory Notes

Other in Cash and cash equivalent comprises of:
Investment with original maturities of up to 3 months:
NPR 300,000,000.

Financial assets and Financial Liabilities

3.4.1 Recognition

The Bank initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial
liability in its statement of financial position when, and only
when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. The Bank initially recognize loans and advances,
deposits; and debt securities/subordinated liabilities issued
on the date that they are originated which is the date that
the Bank becomes party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.
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Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture,
Government securities, NRB bond or deposit auction,
reverse repo, outright purchase are recognized on trade date
at which the Bank commits to purchase/acquire the financial
assets. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets
are recognized on trade date (the date on which the Bank

commits to purchase or sell the asset).

3.4.2 Classification

A. Financial Assets
The Bank classifies the financial assets as subsequently
measured at amortized cost or fair value on the basis of the
Bank’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial

assets. The two classes of financial assets are as follows:

i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost
The Bank classifies a financial asset measured at amortized
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Explanatory Notes
Financial Assets measured at amortized cost reported as at
31t Asadh 2078:

Amount (NPR
in ‘000’)

Cash in hand 10
Balances with B/Fls 600,269
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 1,879,968
Placements with Bank and Financial Institutions 18,283,476
Loans and advances to Customers 2,297,304
Government Bond 1,286,745

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions, Loans and
advances to Customers and Government Bond comprise
Interest receivable amounting NPR 9,565,386.04, NPR
57,074.01 and NPR 14,045,640.07 respectively.

ii. Financial asset measured at fair value
Financial assets other than those measured at amortized
cost are measured at fair value. Financial assets measured
at fair value are further classified into two categories as

below:
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL)

Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are designated
at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are
subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair

value are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

As at the reporting date, the Bank does not have any financial
assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading
and at the initial recognition, the Bank makes an irrevocable
election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the
instrument is to be recognized in other comprehensive
income are classified as financial assets at fair value though
other comprehensive income. Such assets are subsequently
measured at fair value and changes in fair value are

recognized in other comprehensive income.

As at the reporting date, the Bank does not have any financial
assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVTOCI).

Financial Liabilities
The Bank classifies the financial liabilities as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit
or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading or are designated
at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition,
transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition
are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.
Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized in Statement

of Profit or Loss.

As at the reporting date, the Bank does not have financial
liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL).

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value
though profit or loss are classified as subsequently measured
at amortized cost using effective interest method.
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Explanatory Notes
As at the reporting date, the bank’s financial liabilities are

measured at amortized cost as below:

Amount (NPR
in ‘000°)

Deposits from customers 301,639
1,600,000

Borrowings

Deposits from customers comprise deposits of Borrowers
held in current/escrow accounts. Borrowings comprise Inter-

Bank Borrowing of 7 days.

3.4.3 Measurement
Initial Measurement
A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its

acquisition or issue.

Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in Statement
of Profit or Loss.

Subsequent Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is subsequently
measured either at fair value or at amortized cost based on
the classification of the financial asset or liability. Financial
asset or liability classified as measured at amortized cost is
subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective

interest rate method.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is
the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments,
plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for

impairment or un-collectability.

The Bank has applied NFRS 9 — “Financial Instruments”
in the classification and measurement of its financial

instruments.

3.4.4 Determination of Fair Value
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participant at the measurement date.
The determination of fair value has been done as per the
framework laid down in NFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’.
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3.4.5 Impairment of Financial Assets/liabilities

The Bank, at the end of each reporting period, assesses
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.

It may not be possible to identify a single, discrete event
that caused the impairment. Rather the combined effect of
several events may have caused the impairment. Objective
evidence impairment includes observable data such as
following:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganization;

where observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group
of financial assets since the initial recognition of those
assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with
the individual financial assets in the bank, including adverse
changes in repayment patterns or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

3.4.5.1 Impairment charge / (reversal and write off)

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The amount of
the loss is recognized in profit or loss. The carrying amount
of the asset is reduced through the use of an impairment
allowance account. Subsequent reversal of impairment
loss, due to factors such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating, is recognized in profit or loss. The reversal shall
not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that
exceeds what the amortized cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognized at the date the impairment

is reversed.

Financial assets (and the related impairment allowance
accounts) are written off either partially or in full, when there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. Where financial assets
are secured, this is generally after receipt of any proceed

from the realization of security.
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Opening 4,951,796

Additional during the year 21,775,624

Impairment Charge for Loan to Customers (as per NAS 39) -

Loan Outstanding as on 15.07.2021 2,177,562,417
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Closing 21,775,624
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Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognized at
fair value and subsequently measured at fair value in the
statement of financial position, with transaction costs
recognized in profit or loss. All changes in fair value are
recognized as part of net trading income in profit or loss as

regarded as fair value through profit & loss account.

Explanatory Notes
The Bank does not have any trading assets as on the

reporting date.

Derivatives Assets and Derivative Liabilities

Derivatives held for risk management purposes include
all derivative assets and liabilities that are not classified
as trading assets or liabilities. Derivatives held for risk
management purposes are measured at fair value in the

statement of financial position.

Explanatory Notes
The Bank does not have any derivative liabilities as on the

reporting date.

Property and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement

Property and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the assets will
flow to the Bank and the cost of the asset can be reliably
measured. The cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost of self-
constructed assets includes followings:

Cost of materials and direct labor;

Any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to
the working condition for their intended use; and

Capitalized borrowing cost

Property and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss if any. Neither class of the property and equipment
are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value
measured at the reporting date.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that
the future economic benefits from the expenditure will flow
to the entity. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the
assets in working condition are expensed as incurred.

Any gain or losses on de-recognition of an item of property

and equipment is recognized in profit or loss.

During the reporting period, the Bank has not derecognized
any assets.
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b) Capital work in progress
Capital work in progress is stated at cost. These are expenses
of a capital nature directly incurred in the construction of

buildings, awaiting capitalization.

As at the reporting date, the Bank does not have any Capital

work in progress.

c) Depreciation
Property and equipment’s are depreciated from the date they
are available for use on property on straight-line method over
estimated useful lives as determined by the Management.
Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss. Leased assets
under the finance lease are depreciated over the shorter of
the lease term and their useful life. Land is not depreciated.
Charging of depreciation is ceased from the earlier of the
date from which the asset is classified as held for sale or is

derecognized.

The estimated useful lives of significant items of property

and equipment for current year are as follows:

Leasehold Building 10 Years
Furniture and fixtures

Furniture and fixtures used in meeting halls 8 Years

Furniture and fixtures- Others 10 Years
Computers & Accessories

Servers & Networks 6 Years

Others 3 years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Electrical Installations & Equipment 10 Years
Vehicles/Motorcycles

Car, Bus 8 Years

Motorcycle 10 Years
Machinery 15 Years
Intangibles 5 Years (or as

per Agreement)

Assets costing less than NPR 10,000 are fully depreciated in
the year of purchase. For assets purchased/sold during the
year, depreciation is provided upto the date of use on pro-

rata basis.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual value are

reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if any.

3.8 Goodwill & Intangible Assets
Goodwill
Goodwill represents the residual of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets and
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contingents acquired. Goodwill represents those intangibles
that are not identifiable. Goodwill is allocated to a cash-
generating unit (CGU), which may be larger than the entity
acquired, and is not amortized. It is assessed for impairment
on an annual basis by comparing the present value of the
expected cash flows generated by the CGU to the carrying
value of the net assets of that CGU (including the goodwill).
To the extent impairment is identified, this is charged to the

income statement at that time.

Acquired Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which
reflects market expectations of the probability that the
future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to
the Bank, and are amortized on the basis of their expected

useful lives.

Computer Software

The intangible assets of the Bank include computer software
purchased by the Bank. Software is measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss
if any. Software is amortized on a straight-line basis in profit
or loss over its useful life, from the date that is available for
use. The estimated useful life of software for the current and
comparative periods is five year or as per the agreement.
Amortization method, useful lives and residual value are

reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if any.

Investment Property

An investment property is defined as property held by the
bank to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather
than own-occupied. It will not be held for consumption in
the business operations and disposal would not affect the
operations of the bank. Investment properties are initially
measured at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequently
all investment properties (without exception) are reported
at fair value with any gains or losses in fair value reported
in the income statement as they arise. The fair value used
is that which the property could be exchanged between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction
and should reflect market conditions at the balance sheet
date.

Explanatory Notes
The Bank does not have any Investment Property as on the

reporting date.



Tart affer ufdeaeT 000/ ve

3.90 f89, |UTT TAT Subordinated IRICAET

% Eq

bl MEFAIERaTe ATaId (HET TH T Tl
g | Ih AT Sebel AP TIAT @S GG
T g Eheeals (quaichl THHHT  Frdrtaea
Ty |

g B R e

TGHT Febel AT TLHT HOTH, dieg qIqGT A7 HI
GV AL TG | GRAT S TR | T
St Werwr demd yOE FRER @d  HeE
e Mg T O9Ufg THEl TS @Rl YA T
Amortized ARTTHT WA T |

8T 1

Subordinated 3T

Subordinated ZTUcaEE ATl A1 acaee g1 I
T @S WUHT GUSHT {qaraeRal, OrTA e
HIEERapl Al Al TSl YThiHl AEENT Wbl 57 |

gicaes fafadr Swal & Subordinated aTIcaE®
BT

3.99 WOE quT U

Ages @G ANAHT /U9 g T SUHET Tl
UIHT TR a7 AE9HEEl q@iEg |

39 TFWT qAT ATl ¥l /qTicage

g faRTaEr weA MRl Sl AqWI SeerE
FIA AAAT TR TIA A fqaiE g
Y TEH (A | A0 T Al ¥ I
IRCT T THH AT AMdF A9 e qedTe
EHR GG N GFA AP AT FTEH qfgAH
T § |

S gEAAT Acd A1 AqH lcd SHee A
A ATMER qEAEAT A W g ARl AT
Sl AT UfEAT TR gaT ATY gerEr ufq T
Ea

Onerous H¥HIATHl AT GTH  Ufg=nd  a&dr

[afedT @R AN W= FH AR E |

Y% iaaed HiqwT @i W@HarE gAEdid
g T A I AFHTATS ZLMIAR! AT AT
LRI A R IR I EC IS RE I
aifefe wrEaT g dfauwr @ orEEErs fedr
g |

3.10 Deposits, Debts Securities Issued and Subordinated

a)

b)

c)

Liabilities
Deposits
The Bank accepts deposits from its customers under Term
deposits. These transactions are recorded on the bank’s
books, and the resulting balance is recorded as a liability for
the Bank and represents the amount owed by the Bank to

the customer.

Debt Securities Issued

It includes debentures, bonds or other debt securities issued
by the Bank. Debt securities issued are initially measured
at fair value minus incremental direct transaction costs, and
subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the

effective interest method.

The Bank does not have any of such debentures issued by

the bank as on the reporting date.

Subordinated Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the event
of winding up are subordinate to the claims of depositors,
debt securities issued and other creditors.

The Bank does not have any of such subordinated liabilities
as on the reporting date.

3.11 Stationery

Stationery purchased are stated at cost and charged to

revenue at the time of consumption.

3.12 Provisions and Contingent Assets/ Liabilities

Bank recognizes a provision if, as a result of past event, the
Bank has a present constructive or legal obligation that can
be reliably measured and it is probable that an outflow of

economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation.

When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is

remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

A provision for onerous contract is recognized when the
expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from a contract
are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation

under the contract.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable
that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the
obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial

statements. However, contingent assets are assessed
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continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of
economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income

are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is
a possible obligation or a present obligation that may but
probably will not require an outflow of resources. It generally
comprises of documentary credits, forward asset purchases

and undrawn formal standby facilities.

The Bank does not have any Provisions as at reporting date.
Contingent liabilities have been presented under schedule
4.28.

3.13 Revenue Recognition

a)

Revenue comprises of interest income and fees &
commission. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank
and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is not
recognized during the period in which its recoverability of
income is not probable. The bases of incomes recognition

are as below:

Interest income
Interest income is recognized in profit or loss using accrual

method.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss
are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Contractual interest income and expense
on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or

loss is recognized within net interest income.

Interest income on financial assets classified as amortized
cost or FVOCI is measured using effective interest rate
method. These financial assets include loans and advances
including staff loans, placements with BFls, investment in

government securities, etc.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(for example, prepayment options) but does not consider

future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or
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received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all
other premiums or discounts. Where the estimates of cash
flows have been revised, the carrying amount of the financial
asset or liability is adjusted to reflect the actual and revised
cash flows, discounted at the instrument’s original effective
interest rate. The adjustment is recognised as interest income
or expense in the period in which the revision is made. If
the financial asset has been reclassified, subsequent
increases in the estimates of future cash receipts as a result
of increased recoverability are recognised as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate from the date of the change in

estimate.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of

measuring the impairment loss.

Explanatory Notes

Interest income for the reporting period is NPR 1,362.97
million which is presented under schedule 4.29.
Management fee received from customers amounting
NPR 16,130,000 on loan approved during the year, being
an integral part of the effective interest rate, has been
deferred as Unearned income since the loan has not
been disbursed as on the reporting date. The outstanding
amount of Unearned income as on Ashad 31, 2078 is NPR

43,518,562.50 as shown below:
Amount (In NPR)

Unearned Income m

Opening 27,388,563
Transfer to account during the year 16,130,000
Transferred from account during the year -
Closing 43,518,563
b) Fees and Commission

Fees and commissions are recognized on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided or significant act
performed whenever the benefit exceeds cost in determining
such value. Whenever, the cost of recognizing fees and
commissions on an accrual basis exceeds the benefit in
determining such value, the fees and commissions are
charged off during the year. Loan syndication fees are
recognized as revenue when the syndication has been
completed and the bank retained no part of the loan package
for itself, or retained a part at the same effective interest rate

as for the other participants.
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Fees and commissions are integral part of the effective
interest of the Loans &Advances. These include origination

fees or other yield enhancing fees.

Other operating Income

The Bank presents income other than those presented
under interest income, fees and commission income under
this heading. Dividend income received from equity shares
is also recognized as other operating income in the books

when the bank’s right to receive the dividend is established.

Net Trading Income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to
trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realised and
unrealised fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign

exchange differences.

Net Income from Other Financial Instrument at Fair
Value Through Profit or Loss

At initial recognition, the bank may choose to designate
certain financial assets and liabilities as being held at fair
value through profit or loss (the fair value option). Realised
and unrealised gains and losses on these instruments are

reported through net trading income.

3.14 Interest Expense

Interest expense should be measured using the Effective
Interest Method for financial and debt instruments not
classified as FVTPL. Interest expense is determined in
a similar way to interest income, with interest expense
incorporating contractual interest due, premiums or
discounts and any capitalizable fees and transaction costs

such as origination fees or costs.

3.15 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is
an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Bank estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value of the Cash Generating Unit's (CGU)
less costs to sell and its value in use. Where the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its

recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax

discount rate that reflects current market assessments of



146

Tart affer ufdeaeT 000/ ve

TqTE THT ¥A (Time Value Of Money) T F¥dfaaht
ffee Sfgwa! addM a9 Jedrgadrs  grarared

Teg | SfEd Hewr ¥ fafF anewr HaRer I9gh
FATET Hied WE T4 T g |

foeqa feoaoft
g9 g |

3.9% FHEQ AN

FHATE ATHAT GRATATS HHATA FaT [GT a9 Feqmel
g R It yeer gfawe seEr e
fraq Feriers fed @9 gERa giaar waE
H Eg |

FHATAR oo T T AT ATHT AT AR
ST SR, | et aTqaeRT SR ATt afeaia
MR AT F9adT 6y |

NG (contribute) &l & T T THAATE
O @9HT @9 d@UE g | ded  ThIdh
ANEH AREE T AT R T A @ |

FFHTIT ATHRT AT fafaar faaeomT sEsues e
Actuarial Valuation ¢ HFTAH THUS g7 |

FAOes fafae wmor qur @edt S wmEe
FAT T FAY F U Fg | FEATG WS
IHTEl SRR AR T4 Amortized ARTGHT ATIH
TR @, I9 AT .9 HU qAr I
J&Iq TNUH § | Amortized TR FHATY ATH
HOH {FdEl God T SORETH AERAT (e
TR HOT THEAR BF FHH @ | Amortized

TRUH THA HOIH TRH T AvdH THHH TdHM
Fadl Flh THA B |

3989 e gl
3.9%.9.9 gty aReE A

AT A9, AT AT ARTET FSAAT STeTebl
FAEST AT ANAT BT THET MEd Al
ANEH G AT (afund) IR TRUE g T AR
fund AT FHATOATE FHIA T AT T FFil
TICHT SHHT P fEAHET FAA qA FAEE
aifred TEeT |

SR IR EC R RIS RIS RIS IFAR S AR IR G R
T FHATS ST A I FATR ATAAHT B

the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset,
in determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate

valuation model is used.

Explanatory Notes
The Bank does not have impairment expense in the reporting

period.

3.16 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits includes all forms of consideration given
by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees

or for the termination of employment.

The Bank operates a defined contribution plans as provident
fund contribution of its employees and other post-employment
benefit plans for the accumulated leave encashment under

its Staff Service Bylaw.

For defined contribution plans, the Bank pays contributions
to the publicly administered provident fund plans on a
mandatory basis, and such amounts are charged to operating
expenses. The Bank has no further payment obligations

once the contributions have been paid.

For other post-employment benefit, the liability recognized in
the financial statements is the obligations estimated on the

basis of the actuarial valuation.

The bank provides various loans and advances to the staff
as per the Staff Service Bylaw of the bank. The various
loans and advances provided are Home loan and Vehicle
loan. Staff loan is measured at amortized cost using
effective interest rate method and presented in loans and
advances under schedule 4.7. Unamortized staff benefit is
the difference between the value of loan at carrying amount
and present value of staff loan discounted at market rate.
Amortization of such staff loan is the difference between

opening and closing present value of loan.

3.16.1 Post- employment benefits
3.16.1.1 Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit
plan under which the Bank pays fixed contribution into a
separate Bank (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating
to employee services in the current and prior periods, as
defined in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee

Benefits).

The contribution payable by the employer to a defined

contribution plan is in proportion to the services rendered
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to Bank by the employees and is recorded as an expense
under ‘Personnel expense’ as and when they become due.
Unpaid contribution is recorded as a liability under ‘Other
Liabilities’.

Bank contributed 10% of the basic salary of each employee to
the Employees’ Provident Fund (EPF). The above expenses
are identified as contributions to ‘Defined Contribution Plans’

as defined in NAS- 19 (Employee Benefits).

The Gratuity Liability of 8.33% on Basic Salary of staff is
computed as per Labour Act, 2074 and provided accordingly
treating it as defined contribution plan as the contribution is

fixed.

3.16.1.2 Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan
other than a defined contribution plan. The Bank's net
obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service
in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service

costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.

The Bank recognizes all actuarial gains and losses net of
deferred tax arising from defined benefit plans immediately
in other comprehensive income and all expenses related to
defined benefit plans in employee benefit expense in profit or

loss.

The Bank recognizes gains and losses on the curtailment
or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment
or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment or
settlement comprises any resulting change in the fair value
of plan assets, any change in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation, any related actuarial gains and
losses and any past service cost that had not previously

been recognized.

3.16.1.3 Other Post Employment benefit plans

a.

Other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits are all employee benefits
other than short term employee benefits, post-employment
benefits. Accordingly, leave encashment plan of the Bank
has been considered as Other Long-Term Employee
Benefits as per Nepal Accounting Standards, NAS-19
(Employee Benefits).

Unutilized Accumulated Leave

Bank’s liability towards the accumulated leave which is
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expected to be utilized beyond one year from the end of
the reporting period is treated as other long-term employee

benefits.

Bank’s net obligation towards unutilized accumulated leave
is calculated by discounting the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods to determine the present value of
such benefits. The Discount Rate is based on Yield to Maturity
(YTM) available on Government bonds having similar term to

decrement-adjusted estimated term of liabilities.

The calculation is performed using the Projected Unit Credit
method. Net change in liability for unutilized accumulated
leave including any actuarial gain and loss are recognized in
the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Personnel Expenses’

in the period in which they arise.

Explanatory Notes

Employee benefit reported under schedule 4.36 includes
provision for bonus calculated as mentioned in 3.20
Employee Bonus Payable as per the NRB circular.

Other post-employment benefit and actuarial assumptions
etc. related with long term employee benefits has been

presented under schedule 4.23.

The various metrics used for calculation of amortized staff

loan is presented below.

Total Staff Loan (NPR) 126,392,017
Unamortized staff benefits (NPR) 6,707,337
Amortized Staff Loan (NPR) 119,684,680

Particulars Home [ Auto | Overdraft
Loan | Loan

Original Average Tenure (Yrs) 2095 7.00 4.00
Remaining Average Tenure (Yrs) 19.53  4.98 3.51
Interest Rate % 6% 6% 6%
Market Rate % 7% 7% 7%

The staff benefit to the Staffs due to concessional interest
rate on Staff Loan is determined by applying the differential
interest rate 1% (i.e. 7% less 6%) on Actual staff loan utilized
by respective staffs during the financial year.

3.17 Other Operating expenses
3.17.1 Operating Lease Expense

Payments made under operating lease are recognized in
profit or loss on straight line basis over the term of the lease
in accordance with Para 33 of NAS 17.
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Explanatory Notes
Operating lease expenses is shown in schedule 4.37 under

other operating expenses.

3.17.2 Pre-operating Expense:
The Bank expensed off Pre-operating Expenses in the first

year of its operation as and when incurred.

3.18Income Tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current
tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised directly in

equity or in other comprehensive income.

a) Current Tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable or recoverable
on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Current tax payable also includes any tax liability arising

from the declaration of dividends.

b) Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rate applicable to the Bank as at the reporting date which
is expected to apply when the related deferred income tax

asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized where it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

3.19 Share Capital and Reserves

The Bank classifies the capital instruments as equity
instruments or financial liabilities in accordance with the
substance with the contractual terms of the instruments.
Equity is defined as residual interest in total assets of an
entity after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are
classified as equity of the Bank and distributions thereon are
presented in statement of changes in equity.

3.20 Employee Bonus Payable
Based on the Circular 02 issued by Nepal Rastra Bank to
Infrastructure Development Banks, the bank has recognized
Employee Bonus Payable in the current year on account of
Bonus provision amounting NPR 13,919,313.50 by deducting
expenses in the proportion of Income other than Interest
Income from Placements to Total Income from Income other

than Interest Income from Placements as detailed below:
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Particulars

Total Income from Placements

Amount (In NPR)

Other Income

Interest income 1,362,973,423 1,219,103,774 143,869,649
Fee and commission income 1,976,213 - 1,976,213
Impairment reversal for loans and other losses 4,951,796 - 4,951,796
Non operating income 7,425,945 - 7,425,945
Total Income 1,377,327,377 1,219,103,774 158,223,603
Proportion of Income 100% 88.51% 11.49%

Interest expense 27,063,988 23,954,951 3,109,037
Fee and commission expense 42,035 37,206 4,829
Impairment charge for loans and other losses 21,775,624 19,274,100 2,501,524
Personnel expenses 69,863,077 61,837,398 8,025,679
Other operating expenses 31,272,533 27,680,030 3,592,503
Depreciation & Amortisation 15,641,874 13,844,978 1,796,896
Non operating expense - - -
Total Expenses 165,659,131 146,628,663 19,030,468
Profit Before Bonus & Tax 1,211,668,245 1,072,475,110 139,193,135
Staff Bonus 10% 121,166,825 107,247,511 13,919,313
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3.21 Earnings per share

ii)

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share
(EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares.

Disclosures & Additional Information
Risk Management

The Bank has set up a separate Risk Management
Department (RMD) which oversees overall risk that arise
out of daily business operation as well as on periodic basis
and are put to the oversight of Senior Management, Risk
Management Committee and the Board to discuss the
reports thereon and issue instructions as appropriate.

Risk Management Committee
Under
Governance, the Board has established a Board level Risk

Nepal Rastra Bank Directive on Corporate
Management Committee with clear terms of reference, co-
ordinated by a Non-executive Director, where Co-ordinator
of Audit Committee, Head of Risk Department and Deputy
General Manager (DGM)- Risk & Operations are the other
members. The Committee meets once in every three months.
The Committee oversees and reviews the fundamental
prudential risks including credit, market, reputational, capital
and liquidity, operational including conduct, financial crime
and information and cyber security risk, etc. The Risk
Management Committee receives periodic reports on risk
management, including our portfolio trends, policies and
standards, stress testing, liquidity and capital adequacy, and
is authorised to seek and review any information relating to

an activity within its terms of reference.

At the strategic level, Risk is clearly owned by the Board. The
Risk Management Committee’s role is to review and advise,
diving deeply into risk issues, so that the Board is well placed

to perform its role as the ultimate owner of risk appetite.

Risk Governance

Effective Risk management is essential to consistent and
sustainable performance for all of our stakeholders and is
therefore a central part of the Bank’s financial and operational
performance. The Bank adds value to clients and therefore
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the communities in which it operates, generating returns for

shareholders by taking and managing risks.

The Risk Management Policy adopted by the Bank sets
out a refreshed risk culture and clear control framework,
with sharper delineation of responsibilities. It sets out the
principles and standards for risk management across the
bank.

The bank manages enterprise wide risks that are inherent
in its strategy and business model, with the objectives of
maximizing risk-adjusted returns while remaining within its
risk appetite. The Bank will not compromise adherence to
its risk appetite in order to pursue revenue growth or higher

returns.

The Bank’s key risk priorities are: strengthen the risk culture,
manage and improve information and cyber security, manage
financial crime risk, strengthen our conduct environment,
enhance our compliance infrastructure and improve our

efficiency and effectiveness.

The Bank uses a set of principles that describe its risk
management culture, on a sustainable basis. The principles

of risk management followed by the Bank include:

Balancing risk and return.

Conduct of business: seeking to achieve good outcomes for
clients, investors and the market in which the bank operates,
while abiding by the spirit and letter of laws and regulations
and demonstrating that we are here for good through our
conduct.

Responsibility and Accountability: Ensuring that risk taking is
disciplined and focused, particularly within area of authority,
and that risk taking is transparent, controlled and reported in
line with the Enterprise Risk Management Framework, within
risk appetite boundaries and where there is appropriate
infrastructure and resource.

Anticipation: Anticipating material future risks, learning
lessons from events producing adverse outcomes and
ensuring awareness of known risks

Competitive advantage: Achieving competitive advantage

through efficient and effective risk management and control

The ultimate responsibility for setting the bank’s risk appetite
and for the effective management of risk rests with the
Board.

Acting within an authority delegated by the Board, The Risk

Management Committee is responsible for the establishment
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of, and compliance with, policies relating to credit risk, market
risk, operational risk, reputational risk, country risk, financial
crime risk, information and cyber security risk. It meets once
in every three months and reviews the overall risk, which
is put to the Board for discussion. lts objective is to ensure
the effective management of risks throughout the Bank in
support of the Bank’s Business Strategy.

The Assets and Liabilities Committee is responsible
for the management of capital and establishment of,
and compliance with, policies relating to balance sheet
management, including management of liquidity, capital
adequacy and foreign exchange and interest rate exposure

and tax exposure.

The Bank’s Committee Governance structure ensures that
risk-taking authority and risk management policies are
cascaded down from the Board to the appropriate functional,
client business, senior management and committees.
Information regarding material risk issues and compliance
with policies and standards is communicated through the

business, functional, senior management and committees.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for ensuring the Bank has
appropriate internal control framework in place that supports
the achievement of the strategies and objectives. The
various functions of the Bank should be looked upon with
a view to establish a proper control mechanism is in place
during expansion and growth which enables it to maximize
profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which
can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations and enhance resilience

to external events.

The Board has set policies and procedures of risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and control/
monitoring, in line with the NRB directives has effectively
implemented the same at the Bank.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its Committees,

Management and Internal Auditor.

The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/
standards and the effectiveness of internal control structures
across the Bank through regular audit, information system
audit, Off Site review, AML/CFT/ KYC audit as well as
Risk based Internal Audit (RBIA) approach. The audit
observations are reported to the Chief Executive Officer
and Business Heads for initiating immediate corrective
measures. Internal Audit reports are periodically forwarded

to the Audit Committee for review and the committee issues
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appropriate corrective action in accordance with the issue

involved to the respective departments or offices.

4.1.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the potential for loss due to failure of a
counterparty to meet its agreed obligations to pay the Bank
in accordance with agreed terms. The bank manages its
credit exposures following the principle of diversification
across products, client segments and industry sectors.
Credit Approval Document (CAD) / Credit Manual govern
the extension of credit to clients/developers. The manual
provides the framework for lending to counterparties,
account management, product approvals and other product

related guidance, credit processes and portfolio standards.

There is a clear segregation of duties between transaction
originators in the businesses and the approvers in the Risk
functions. All credit exposure limits are approved within a

defined Credit Approval Authority Framework.

The credit risk management covers, credit risk assessment
and credit approval, large exposures and credit risk
concentration, credit monitoring, credit risk mitigation and

portfolio analysis.

4.1.2 Operational Risk

We define Operational Risk as the potential for loss resulting
from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from the impact of external events, including
legal risks. We seek to minimize our exposure to operational
risk, subject to cost trade-offs. Operational risk exposures
are managed through a consistent set of management
processes that drive risk identification, assessment, control

and monitoring.

The Board level Risk Management Committee, oversees
the management of operational risks across the Bank. Risk
Owner has the responsibility to ensure that the Process
Owner demonstrates that process and control designs meet
applicable regulatory requirements, and that compliance
exceptions are identified, remediated and reported as
part of the operational risk profile. Risk owners have
responsibility for the control of operational risk arising from
the management of the following operational risk sub types:
External Rules & Regulations, Liability, Legal Enforceability,
Damage or Loss of Physical Assets, Safety & Security,
Internal Fraud or Dishonesty, External Fraud, Information
Security, Processing Failure and Model. Operational risks
can arise from all business lines and from all activities
carried out by the Bank. Operational Risk management

approach seeks to ensure management of operational risk
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by maintaining a complete process universe defined for all

business segments, products and functions processes.

Products and services offered to clients and customers are
also assessed and authorized in accordance with product

program guidelines.

4.1.3 Market Risk

We recognize Market Risk as the potential for loss of
earnings or economic value due to adverse changes in
financial market rates or prices. Risks arising out of adverse
movements in currency exchange rates, interest rates,
commodity price and equity prices are covered under Market
Risk Management. Our exposure to market risk arises
predominantly from customer driven transactions. The
market risk is managed within the risk tolerances and market

risk limits set by the Board.

4.1.4 Capital and Liquidity Risk

Capital risk is the potential for insufficient level or composition
of capital to support our normal operation. The bank
maintains a very strong capital position sufficient to support
its strategic aims. Capital adequacy ratio of the Bank as at 15
July, 2021 stood at 305.55%.

Liquidity risk is the potential that the Bank either does not
have sufficient liquid financial resources available to meet
all its obligations as they fall due, or can only access these
financial resources at excessive cost. The Liquidity Risk
Framework governs liquidity risk and is managed by ALCO.
In accordance with that policy, the Bank maintains a liquid

portfolio of marketable securities as a liquidity buffer.

4.1.5 Reputational Risk

Reputational risk is the potential for damage to the reputation,
resulting in loss of earnings or adverse impact on market
capitalisation as a result of stakeholders taking a negative
view of the organisation, its actions or inactions-leading

stakeholders to change their behaviour.

Reputational risk is managed by the Board level Risk
Management Committee, which is responsible for protecting
the Bank’s reputation locally and has the responsibility
to ensure that the Bank does not undertake any activities
that may cause material damage to the reputation. All
employees are responsible for day-to-day identification and

management of reputational risk.
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4.1.6 Information & Cyber Security Risk

4.2

Information & cyber security risk is the potential for loss
from a breach of confidentiality, integrity and availability
of bank information systems and assets through cyber-
attack, insider activity, error or control failure. The Risk
Management Committee seeks to avoid risk and uncertainty
for our critical information assets and systems and has low
appetite for material incidents affecting these or the wider
operations and reputation of the Bank. The Bank’s Cyber
Security Strategy focuses the Bank’s resources on five key
investment priorities, viz. |dentify, Detect, Recover, Respond

and Protect.

The Board level Risk Management Committee is responsible
for managing Information and Cyber Security Risk. In that
line, the Bank has developed IT Policy to identify, assess
and address the issues on information security risk. The
Bank has also developed Backup policy as part of business

continuity plan and disaster recovery mechanism.

Capital Management

Qualitative disclosures

The total equity of the bank comprises of paid up capital,
statutory reserves and other reserves. The paid-up capital
is a fully paid equity share. Bank does not have other
complex or hybrid capital instrument like preference share,
subordinated debts, warrants etc. The interest of equity

holder in the net assets of the bank is residual in nature.

The Bank has robust capital management plan to meet its
organic growth ambitions over the coming years both during
the normal conditions and to support its projected risk profile
under economically stressful conditions. As per our latest
CAR submitted to NRB, the Bank has more than sufficient
total capital in comparison with its ceiling as defined in its
Capital Risk Appetite due to mandatory paid up capital and
regulatory reserves. The Bank remains committed not only
being well capitalised but to maintaining a sustainable capital

position.
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(ii) Quantitative disclosures
1. Capital structure and Capital Adequacy

a. Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components:

Amount (NPR. in '000')

S.N. Core Capital (Tier 1) 22,367,207

q. (LT 77 30,000,000 a  Paid up Equity Share Capital 20,000,000
Q. ‘JI'{?‘I'I'PO]H CIGLIRILEY - b  Proposed Bonus Equity Share -
32 R eI - ¢ Share Premium -
X, [TIAAER FERT ST L4% IR0 d  Statutory General Reserves 554,220
4. qfad AT AT AT 9,535,299 e Retained Earnings 1,828,917
& T FH T mﬁqﬁ - f Un-audited current year cumulative profit -
gfad AT
o T @q e i} g Other Free Reserve -
c TS 3]_5_& i 438 h  Less: Intangible Assets 15,929

qM [EF T T ggar affer
W@H (§.'000" )

) N

. RO Sl A SEr 9,995
R faftrmg gHReE . F I -

g. Subordinated Debt & faea SMeEE, SHIwIT
TRH @H T G A il AT AT T
fren @

A A

Geflare was
B ® Q%R &R

9. SFT $Sfia
B T WIzgR5Y B

F. o war<ar sgaa
= 304.44%

T FFa fremm T whrwer afdfafeee @w
T @ (e Ware Fedidd TN AaE
AaPrHT R,

R09s TG T HeAEE HH{AH! AFHEH TLHC

FATFEIT TH g | AARE GSll FaTqar Jedidwd
frgfor gfar R09s F&, JHEEd T qu WHIT T
YERATEES YUTEl &1 9 dbArs AT Gt
THY, YK T [qa<urel AT T 1 FHieE
FIW TeT HEd TEg, I dGFH FREAR GHT T
SfgHel TR AT T g |

b. Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components:
Amount (NPR. in '000)

m Supplementary Capital (Tier 2)

a General loan loss provision 21,776

b Exchange Equalization Reserve -

c. Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts
with information on the outstanding amount, maturity,
and amount raised during the year and amount eligible
to be reckoned as capital funds.

u Not applicable.

Deductions from capital;
B NPR 15,929 thousand

e. Total qualifying capital;
NPR 22,388,984 thousand

f. Capital adequacy ratio;
B 305.55 %.

g. Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the
adequacy of its capital to support current and future
activities, if applicable;

The Bank has formulated and implemented the "Internal
Capital Adequacy Assessment Process 2018" (ICAAP 2018)
which has been approved by the Board of Directors. The
ICAAP 2018 is a system of sound, effective, and complete
strategies and processes that allow the Bank to assess and
maintain, ongoing basis, the amounts, types and distribution
of internal capital that the Bank considers adequate to cover
the nature and level of risk to which the Bank is or might be

exposed to.
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Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP)
shall also include requirement to have robust governance
arrangements, efficient process of managing all material
risks and an effective regime for assessing and maintaining
adequate economic capital at the Bank where economic
capital (economically needed capital) refers to the amount
of capital required for the Bank’s business operations and for

financing the associated risks.

ICAAP 2018 shall provide policy and procedural guidelines
for the calculation of internal capital adequacy by prescribing
appropriate methodologies, techniques and procedures to
assess the capital adequacy requirements in relation to the
Bank’s risk profile and effectiveness of its risk management,

control environment and strategic planning.

The Board shall be primarily responsible for ensuring the
current and future capital needs of the bank in relation to
strategic objectives. The management shall review and
understand the nature and level of various risks that the bank
is confronting during different business activities and how
this risk relates to capital levels and accordingly implement
sound risk management framework specifying control

measures to tackle each risk factor.

The long-term plans and strategies of the bank is generally
guided by Annual Budgets/ Operating/ Tactical plans. To
ensure that the Bank’s capital adequacy commensurate
to demand of the capital required by the business targets,
the Management and the Board prudently and proactively
engage on ongoing process of capital and risk assessment,
stress testing and scenarios testing, monitoring and reporting
as per the ICAAP 2018.

The Bank also formulates and implements “Stress Testing”
mechanism in order to assess the vulnerability of the Bank
under various stress situations typically, application of “what-
if” scenarios, especially in the problematic identification of low
frequency but high severity events and identifying expected
and unexpected losses. It focuses on capturing the impact of
large, but still plausible events and understanding the overall
risk profile in a coherent and consistent framework, including

impact analysis on earnings, solvency and liquidity.

Stress testing of the Bank also includes macroeconomic
environment of the country and its impact in the Bank’s
business as well as entire key risk areas and functions of the
Bank as far as data availability and resources permit those

having ultimate impact on the capital adequacy of the Bank.

A formal monitoring and reporting mechanism have been

established to provide the senior management necessary
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information on the risk profile, trends, and the capital
requirements as per ICAAP 2018. Such reports are being
prepared on a monthly and quarterly basis and circulated
to relevant business units/departments, Integrated Risk
Management Department (IRMD), and tabled in Assets
Liability Committee (ALCO) meeting. Further quarterly
reports are presented to the Risk Management Committee

and the Board for review and discussions.

h. Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all
capital instruments, especially in case of subordinated
term debts including hybrid capital instruments.

The bank has fully paid equity shares as qualifying capital.

2. Risk exposures
a. Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk

and Operational Risk

RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES Amount
(NPR. in '000')

&) FAT AMGHFT FRgH WG T £ 99 3¥% a. Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 6,171,349
) )
N N b. Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational 1,156,028
@) g EHE e T @ 9,945,038 Riok 9 P P
M) TR ARgHE Sfgq aid T - c. Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk -
o) Pillar I| 39 del THEENT - d. Adjustments under Pillar-II -
Total Risk Weighted Exposures 7,327,377
T Sfgw i W 9,309,300 (arb+csd)
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b. Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 9 categories of Credit Risk

Amount (NPR. in '000')

S.No. Particulars Claim RWE
As on 15.07.2021 As on 15.07.2021

1 Claims on govt. and central Bank 3,166,714 -

2 Claims on other official entities

3 Claims on Banks 18,574,180 3,714,836

4 Claims on corporate and securities firm 2,177,562 2,177,562

5 Claims secured by commercial real state

6 Past due Claims

7 High risk claims

8 Other Assets 246,421 219,493

9 Off Balance sheet Items 162,485 81,233
Total 24,327,362 6,171,349
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{HH (®.‘000" HI)
e o W ﬁ
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T T THAT WH Aiard 9,59 R%5 9,59 %5 0% -
YT A bl HUTAAT TRUST W §,9%,900 4,393,900 0% -
qifepueer Eﬁﬁ FT FIAW T @aefl 9z,49%¥ 950 9z,49¥ 950 0%  3NHNY¥ 5%
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c. Total risk weighted exposure calculation table:

Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk Amount (NPR. in '000")

Book Specific Eligible Net Risk Weighted
Value | Provision CRM Value Exposures

10 10

A. Balance Sheet Exposures

Cash Balance 0% -
Balance with Nepal Rastra Bank 1,879,968 1,879,968 0% -
Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities 1,272,700 1,272,700 0% -
Claims on domestic banks that meet capital 18,574,180 18,574,180 20% 3,714,836
adequacy requirements

Claims on Domestic Corporates 2,177,562 2,177,562 100% 2,177,562
Interest Receivable/claim on government securities 14,046 14,046 0% -
Other Assets (as per attachment) 246,421 26,928 - 219,493 100% 219,493
TOTAL (A) 24,164,887 48,704 - 24,116,183 6,090,116

Amount (NPR. in '000)

B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures Specific Eligible Risk Weighted

Provision Exposures

LC Commitments with Original Maturity Over 162,453 162,453 50%
6 months domestic counterparty

Irrevocable Credit commitments (short term) 32 32 20% 6
TOTAL (B) 162,485 - - 162,485 81,233
Total RWE for credit Risk Before Adjustment 24,327,372 48,704 - 24,278,668 6,171,349
(A) +(B)

Adjustments under Pillar I

SRP 6.4a(3) - Add 10% of the loans & facilities in excess of Single Obligor Limits -

SRP 6.4a(4) - Add 1% of the contract (sale) value in case of the sale of credit with recourse -

Total RWE for Credit Risk after Bank's 24,327,372 48,704 - 24,278,668 6,171,349
adjustments under Pillar I

v, fiirr gwafaar @ (@A T @]) JAIAiAaneIor d. Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net) Restructure/
aqar mﬁ'ﬂT Reschedule Loan

. - = Nil
HHAAT Substandard Loan

L = Nil
gqq Loss Loan

L = Nil

s. faferr wvft g e. NPA ratios

L = Nil

() 9ed TR T ERRICE] iii) Compliance with external requirement
el ATl e Jepare WA U ﬂ?ﬁw The bank has complied with the requirement of capital
el e Jeoi@ HURT gq¥letdhl afie adequacy framework issued by Nepal Rastra Bank

FATTIX qICATAAT Tl g | throughout the reporting period.
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4.3 Related Parties
The Bank identifies the following as the related parties under
the requirements of NAS-24:

Mr. Anuj Agarwal BOD Chairman

Mr. Dhani Ram Sharma Director
Mr. Chandra Pd. Dhakal Director
Mr. Lalmani Joshi Director

Mr. Ram Krishna Khatiwada Key Management Personnel

4.3.1 Compensation to Key Management Personnel
The members of Board of Directors are entitled for meeting
allowances. Salary and allowances are provided to Chief
Executive Officer and other member of Key Management
Personnel (KMP). Salary and Allowances paid to the Chief
Executive Officer is based on the contract entered by the
Bank with him whereas compensation paid to other member
of KMP are governed by Employees Byelaws and decisions
made by management time to time in this regard. In addition
to salaries and allowances, non- cash benefits like vehicle
facility, subsidized rate employees’ loan, termination benefits

are also provided to KMP.

The details relating to compensation paid to key management

personnel are as follows:

Transaction with Board of Directors
Amount (In NPR)

m

Board Meeting Fees 1,102,000
Travel and Other Board Expenses 267,696
Total 1,369,696

Transactions with Chief Executive Officer

Short Term Benefit- Fixed Salary 13,135,678
Other current benefits and payments -
Post-employment benefits -
Total 13,135,678
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Summary of Transactions with Related Parties
Amount (In NPR)

Items in Statement of Profit or Loss

Board Meeting Fee-Directors 1,102,000
Travel and Other Board Expenses 267,696
Salary of CEO 13,135,678
Balances as on Ashadh End - - 14,505,374

Items in Statement of Financial Position - - -

Off Balance Sheet Exposure - - -

¥ ¥ I ISl

¥ 00,000,000 %900 ¥0,000 000 000
Erra?r j:vﬁ 300,000,000 %.900 20,000,000,000
gl 300,000,000 ®.q00 20,000,000,000

4.4 Share Capital

Capital Structure of the Bank is as follows:
Amount (In NPR)

_ No. of Shares Value per Shares Capital in Value (NPR)

Authorized Capital 400,000,000 NPR 100 40,000,000,000
Issued Capital 200,000,000 NPR 100 20,000,000,000
Paid Up Capital 200,000,000 NPR 100 20,000,000,000
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4.4.1 Shareholding Pattern

The Shareholding pattern of the Bank is as follows:

Particulars of Share Ownership Current Year

1. Local Ownership 100% 20,000,000,000
1.1 Government of Nepal 10.00% 2,000,000,000
1.2 "Ka" Class Licensed Institutions 20.89% 4,178,300,000
1.8 Other Licensed Institutions 0.05% 10,000,000
1.4 Organized Institutions (Promoters) 18.97% 3,794,200,000
1.5 General Public 40.00% 4,000,000,000
1.6 Others (Promoters) 10.09% 2,017,500,000

2. Foreign Ownership - -

Total 100% 20,000,000,000

¥.¥.] THEIEHT qUH fEdd

MR I ufd IRR
AT

Q HMEU Y099 TdHl  ITYOT ET 430,000,000 €400 93,000,000 000 0% TWITH T
3 AYE 095 TAdHl I AT 200,000 000 €900 30,000 000000 g\sﬁ (®9 )
e fHfT 2008 AT 9% TT T 5 AT TUALH! ¥0% FERY X FAGERUAS A T TiShie TH 5 |

4.4.2 Equity Share Capital Movement Amount (In NPR)

Fiscal Year No. of Value Total Paid

Shares per Share Up Capital NPR
Ordinary Share Capital as at 1st Shrawan, 2077 120,000,000 100 12,000,000,000 60% Promoter's
Ordinary Share Capital as at 31st Ashad, 2078 200,000,000 100 20,000,000,000 Share capital

i.e. NPR 12 billion

The Bank has issued and allotted 40% ordinary shares amounting NPR 8 billion to the public on Magh 16, 2077.
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4.5 Statutory Reserves and Funds
The reserves include statutory reserves and funds set aside
for specific purpose. The various reserves and funds are as

below:

4.5.1 General Reserve
General Reserve is created as per Section 44 of the Banks
and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 equivalent to 20% of the
net profit earned during the year until the reserve is twice the
paid-up share capital of the Bank after which 10% of the net
profit earned during the year shall be set aside as General

Reserve.

Such reserve could not be expensed or transferred to other

heads without prior approval of Nepal Rastra Bank.

(TPH R.)
mm

NANES) 355,939 ¥%5

BITAT THHTAL 959 ¥53,09%
ge HATHIH 0% 959 ¥53,09%

AW @W LYY, R9Q,UR

Amount (In NPR)

Opening 386,737,498

Transfer to Reserve 167,482,074
20% of Net Profit 167,482,074

Closing 554,219,572

¥.4.] Gfad FATEH
Jbel AW A9 SEX  (ede  geEfad @ue
% 90,%\95 339 @ A g | G @ HiAd FATRERE
HEEUE g | OO g9 A7 AHed e
FUT TRUH @ AT FEINTT FHTTE JAGIIA
FUATE T 4,900,000 HET FATHMT ITHATAX

TRUE g |

4.5.2 Retained Earning
The Bank has incurred Share issue related costs of NPR
70,478,331 in the current year. It is deducted from Retained
earnings. Similarly, Rs. 5,700,000 incurred on CSR activities
during the year has been transferred from Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Fund to the Retained Earnings.
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Amount (In NPR)

Opening 1,234,371,502
Transfer to Reserve 594,545,322

Profit for the year 837,410,372

Transfer to Genaral Reserve (167,482,074)

Transfer to CSR Fund (8,374,104)

Transfer to Employee Training Fund (2,229,114)

Share Issue Expenses (70,478,331)

Transfer from Regulatory Reserve (1,427)

Transfer from CSR Fund 5,700,000

Closing

1,828,916,824

¥.4.3 UWEE qWive SUGEiacd &Y
AT AL FEH (ERTHE FTER ' 5,39¢,0%
NG 96 A< Qcd HITaT ATl
TRGH T | dbd TG A9 NS FALEIA
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4.5.3 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Fund

As per Nepal Rastra Bank directive, the Bank is required to
create a fund for Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR)
related activities equivalent to one percent of the net profit.
CSR Fund of NPR 8,374,104 has been created as per the
NRB Directive. The Bank has expended NPR 5,700,000 in
the CSR activities in current year. The fund so created shall
be used for CSR activities of the Bank in the next fiscal year

as per the directions of the Board.

T HH 43,2%9,330
BITAT THHTAL 5,39% 40%
TG AYE g3 HATH 539,¥90,393
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Amount (In NPR)

Corporate Social Responsibility Fund m m

Opening 12,967,230
Transfer to Fund 8,374,104
Profit for the year 837,410,372
1% of Net Profit 8,374,104
CSR Expense during the year (5,700,000)
Closing 15,641,334

¥.L.¥ A afesw dy
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F FHAY AR 3% THA FHATA qledsd  qar
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4.5.4 Employee Training Fund

As per Nepal Rastra Bank directive, the Bank is required to
spend three percent of staff cost incurred in previous year
in the Training & Development of the staff. The Bank has
incurred NPR 52,834 in staff training & development during
the current year. Staff Training Fund of NPR 2,229,114 has
been created as per the NRB Directive. The fund so created
shall be used for training and development of staffs in the

next fiscal year.

(TPH ®.)
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Amount (In NPR)

Opening 694,469
Transfer to Fund 2,229,114
3% of PY Staff Expenses 2,281,948
Employee Training Expense during the year (52,834)
Closing 2,923,583
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The detail of statutory reserves included in Reserves disclosed in Statement of Financial Position is as below:

Tart affer ufdeaeT 000/ ve

Particulars

Statutory reserve

Amount (In NPR)

31 Ashadh, 2078 31 Ashadh, 2077

General reserve 554,219,572 386,737,498
Corporate Social Responsibility Fund 15,641,334 12,967,230
Regulatory reserve 57,074 55,647
Staff Training Fund 2,923,583 694,469

Non-statutory reserve

Other reserve

1,828,916,824 1,234,371,502

Total 2,401,758,387 1,634,826,346

(TPH &)
U3c] Uol Bargain SidaT

AT Purchase

CilNGIG)
209¥ /9y - - - - - - - - - - -
R0V /9% %9 ¥R0 - - - - - - - - - '9¥R0
Q0L /B9 Y K¥9 - - - - - - - - 'Y -2 1¢)
R0V9/9  L\909Y - - - - - - - - - ¥\9,00%
S 15031 - - : : : : - - - 3503

Short Loan
Loss
Provision

Short
provision
for possible

Short
provision
on NBA

Interest
Receivable

losses on
Investment

Deferred

Tax

Assets

Amount (In NPR)

Actuarial Fair value Total
loss loss
Recognized
in OCI

Recognized

Gain on
Bargain
Purchase

2074/75 - - - - - - - - -
2075/76 67,490 - - - - - - - - - 67,490
2076/77 55,647 - - - - - - - - - 55647
2077/78 57,074 - - - - - - - - - 57,074
Total 180,211 - - - - - - - - - 180,211
¥.5 i X SR 4.6 Earnings Per Share

¥.%9 Eyd I X AnEE 4.6.1 Basic Earnings Per Share
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Earnings per share, also called net income per share, is
a market prospect ratio that measures the amount of net
income earned per share of stock outstanding. In other
words, this is the amount of money each share of stock would
receive if all of the profits were distributed to the outstanding
shares at the end of the year. It is calculated by dividing profit
or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders by the average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

The earnings attributable to the ordinary equity holders
consists of the earnings of the Bank after deduction of
all expenses, tax expense and preference dividends,
differences arising on the settlement of preference shares,
and other similar effects of preference shares classified as
equity.
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The calculation of basic earnings per share has been
based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
and weighted average number of shares outstanding as

tabulated below:
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Amount (In NPR)

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders NPR

837,410,372 847,145,185

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Reported

156,602,740 120,000,000

Restated

Basic Earnings Per Share NPR

Reported

5.35 7.06

Restated
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4.6.2 Diluted Earnings Per Share
Diluted shares are the shares that would be outstanding if all
possible sources of conversion, such as convertible bonds
and stock options, were exercised. Specific financial figures
in terms of fully diluted shares outstanding are reported
to allow investors to properly assess the Bank's financial

situation. There are no dilutive shares during the year.
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4.7 COVID related and other Disclosures

Accrued Interest received after Ashad end, 2078 till 15 Bhadra, 2078

Durlng FY 2077/78

No. of Customers W

Additional 0.3% Loan Loss Provision created on Pass Loan Portfolio

Extension of moratorium period of Loan provided to Industry or Project under construction

Restructured/Rescheduled Loan with 5% Loan Loss Provision

Enhancement of Working Capital Loan by 20% to COVID affected Borrowers

Not applicable to

Enhancement of Term Loan by 10% to COVID affected Borrowers

the Bank

Expiry date of Additional 20% Working Capital Loan (Covid Loan) extended for upto 1 year with

5% Provisioning

Expiry date of Additional 10% Term Loan (Covid Loan) extended for upto 1 year with 5% Provisioning

Time extension provided for repayment of Principal & Interest for upto 2 years as per clause 41 of

NRB Directives 2

Refinance Loan

Durlng FY 2077/78

No. of Customers m

Business Continuity Loan

Not applicable to

Subsidized Loan

the Bank
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4.8 Additional disclosures of Non-consolidated entities
The bank has no any investment in any entities which
requires consolidation as per applicable NFRS nor any
investment in associates which needs to be pooled in the
financial statement of the bank. The bank has no other equity

investment.

4.9 Events after the Reporting Date

The Bank monitors and assesses events that may have
potential impact to qualify as adjusting and/or non-adjusting
events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting
events are adjusted in the books with additional disclosures
and non-adjusting material events are disclosed in the notes
with possible financial impact, to the extent ascertainable.
There are no material events that have occurred subsequent
to 15 July, 2021 till the signing of this financial statement on
20 September, 2021.
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Unaudited Financial Results (Quarterly)
4th Quarter ended of Financial Year 2020-21 (NPR in ‘000’)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION THIS QUARTER PREVIOUS QUARTER CORROSPONDING
1=\[»][\[e] ENDING § PREVIOUS QUARTER
ENDING
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalent 600,280 156,751 4,380,888
Due from NRB 1,879,968 52,219 9,128
Placements with BFls 18,283,476 19,668,776 8,784,824
Loan and Advances 2,273,152 2,195,638 574,356
Investments Securities 1,286,746 879,515 123,893
Investment in Subsidiaries and Associates = - -
Property and Equipment 81,762 64,842 73,288
Goodwill and intangible Assets 7,361 8,002 10,829
Other Assets 10,858 12,261 11,222
Total Assets 24,423,603 23,038,004 13,968,428
Capital and Liabilities
Paid up Capital 20,000,000 20,000,000 12,000,000
Reserves and surplus 2,400,781 2,153,637 1,634,826
Deposits 301,640 309,465 250,020
Borrowings 1,600,000 490,000 -
Bond and Debenture - - -
Other liabilities and provisions 121,182 84,902 83,582
Total Capital and Liabilities 24,423,603 23,038,004 13,968,428
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contd... Unaudited Financial Results (Quarterly) (NPR in ‘000")
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS UP TO THIS UP TO PREVIOUS UP TO
QUARTER QUARTER CORROSPONDING
PREVIOUS YEAR QUARTER
Interest income 1,360,600 953,799 1,253,683
Interest expense 27,064 18,574 23,018
Net interest income 1,333,536 935,225 1,230,665
Fee and commission income 1,976 1,976 400
Fee and commission expense 42 - 26
Net fee and commission income 1,934 1,976 374

Other operating income - - -

Total operaing income 1,335,470 937,201 1,231,039
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 16,824 16,010 4,952
Net operating income 1,318,646 921,191 1,226,087
Personnel expenses 81,206 55,179 79,913
Other operating expenses 48,514 30,473 44,476
Operating profit 1,188,926 835,539 1,101,698
Non operating income/expense 7,426 7,421 108,521
Profit before tax 1,196,352 842,960 1,210,219
Income tax 359,920 258,671 363,073
Profit /(loss) for the period 836,432 589,289 847,146

Other comprehensive income = - -
Total comprehensive income 836,432 589,289 847,146

Distributable Profit

Net profit/(loss) as per profit or loss 836,432 589,289 847,146
Add/Less: Regulatory adjustment as per NRB Directive (177,880) (126,033) (237,354)
Free profit/(loss) after regulatory adjustments 658,552 463,256 609,792
Ratios

Capital fund to RWA 305.53% 296.19% 323.97%

Non performing loan (NPL) to Toal loan (As per NRB Directive - - -

Total loan loss provision to Total NPL (As per NRB Directive) - - -

Cost of Funds 9.40% 9.40% 9.40%
Credit to Deposit Ratio ( As per NRB Directive) 9.63% 9.37% 3.54%
Base Rate - - -
Basic Earning Per Share 5.34 5.02 7.06

Diluted Earning Per Share 5.34 5.02 7.06
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(NPRin ‘000’)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS PER UNAUDITED§ AS PER AUDITED VARIANCE REASONS
FINANCIAL FINANCIAL FOR

STATEMENTS STATEMENTS VARIANCE
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 600,280 600,280 -
Due from NRB 1,879,968 1,879,968 -
Placements with BFls 18,283,476 18,283,476 -
Loan and advances 2,273,152 2,275,529 2,377 0.1% Due to increase in amortization
Investments Securities 1,286,746 1,286,746 -
Invest_ment in subsidiaries and - - -
associates
Property & equipment 81,762 81,762 -
Goodwill and intangible assets 7,361 7,361 -
Other assets 10,858 8,481 (2,377) -22% Due to increase in amortization
Total Assets 24,423,603 24,423,603 0 0% -
Capital and Liabilities
Paid up Capital 20,000,000 20,000,000 - 0%
Reserves and surplus 2,400,781 2,401,758 978 0% Due to decrease in Provision for
expenses
Deposits 301,640 301,640 - 0%
Borrowings 1,600,000 1,600,000 -
Bond and Debenture - - -
Other liabilities and provisions 121,183 120,205 (978) -1% Due to decrease in Provision
Total Capital and Liabilities 24,423,603 24,423,603 0 0% -

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AS PER UNAUDITED

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

AS PER AUDITED
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

VARIANCE

IN AMOUNT

REASONS
FOR
VARIANCE

Interest income 1,360,600 1,362,973 2,374 0% Due to increase in interest income
Interest expense 27,064 27,064 -

Net interest income 1,333,536 1,335,909 2,374 0% -

Fee and commission income 1,976 1,976 -

Fee and commission expense 42 42 -

Net fee and commission income 1,934 1,934 - - -

Other operating income - - -

Total operaing income 1,335,470 1,337,844 2,374 - -

Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans 16,824 16,824 -

and other losses

Net operating income 1,318,646 1,321,020 2,374 - -

Personnel expenses 81,206 83,782 2,577 3% Due to increase in bonus provision
Other operating expenses 48,514 46,914 (1,600) -3% Due to decrease in provision for
expenses

Operating profit 1,188,926 1,190,323 1,397 0.1%

Non operating income/expense 7,426 7,426 -

Profit before tax 1,196,352 1,197,749 1,397 0.1%

Income tax 359,920 360,339 419 0.1% Due to increase in profit

Profit /(loss) for the period 836,432 837,410 979 01% -

Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive income 836,432 837,410 979 01% -

Distributable Profit

Net profit/(loss) as per profit or loss 836,432 837,410 979 01% -

Add/Less: Regulatory adjustment (177,880) (178,087) (207) 0.1% Due to increase in profit

as per NRB Directive

Free profit/(loss) after regulatory 658,552 659,324 77 0.1%

adjustments
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COMPARISON OF PROJECTED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS IN PROSPECTUS
AND AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of FY 2020-2021 (NPR in ‘000°)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION § AS PER PROJECTEDJ AS PER AUDITED VARIANCE REASONS
FINANCIAL FINANCIAL FOR
STATEMENTS STATEMENTS VARIANCE
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 16,170 600,280 584,109 3612% Due to Placements with original
maturity upto 3 months
Due from NRB 12,000 1,879,968 1,867,968 15566% Due to funding requirement
Placements with BFls 4,474,270 18,283,476 13,809,206 309% Due to Placement of funds with BFls
remaining after loan disbursement

Loan and advances 18,012,221 2,275,529 (15,736,692) -87% Due to decrease in Loan disbursement
Investments Securities 772,700 1,286,746 514,046 67% Due to increase in Investments
Investment in subsidiaries and - - -

associates

Property & equipment 61,216 81,762 20,547 34% Due to addition in assets

Goodwill and intangible assets 8,352 7,361 (991) -12% Due to difference in depreciation
Other assets 17,613 8,482 (9,131) -52% Due to decrease in other assets

Total Assets 23,374,542 24,423,602 1,049,060 4%

Capital and Liabilities

Paid up Capital 20,000,000 20,000,000 -

Reserves and surplus 2,299,345 2,401,758 102,413 4% Due to increase in Profit for the period
Deposits 1,000,000 301,640 (698,360) -70% Due to decrease in deposit mobilization
Borrowings - 1,600,000 1,600,000 100% Due to Inter-bank Borrowing

Bond and Debenture - - -

Other liabilities and provisions 75,197 120,204 45,007 60% Due to increase in other liability

Total Capital and Liabilities 23,374,542 24,423,602 1,049,060 4% -

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AS PER PROJECTEDJ| AS PER AUDITED VARIANCE REASONS

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

IN AMOUNT

FOR
VARIANCE

Interest income 1,355,446 1,362,973 7,527 0.6% Due to increase in interest income

Interest expense 66,885 27,064 (39,821) -60% Due to decrease in Deposit mobilization

Net interest income 1,288,561 1,335,909 47,348 4% -

Fee and commission income 35,841 1,976 (33,864) -94.5% Due to decrease in fee based
transactions

Fee and commission expense - 42 42 100% Due to increase in expenses

Net fee and commission income 35,841 1,934 (33,906) -95% -

Other operating income 6,333 - (6,333) -100% Due to decrease in expenses

Total operaing income 1,330,735 1,337,844 7,108 0.5% -

Impairment charge/(reversal) for 175,048 16,824 (158,224) -90% Due to decrease in Loans & Advances

loans and other losses

Net operating income 1,155,687 1,321,020 165,333 14% -

Personnel expenses 70,525 83,782 13,258 19% Due to increase in bonus provision

Other operating expenses 45,924 46,914 991 2% Due to increase in operating expenses

Operating profit 1,039,239 1,190,323 151,084 15%

Non operating income/expense - 7,426 7,426 100% Due to increase in income

Profit before tax 1,039,239 1,197,749 158,510 15%

Income tax 314,020 360,339 46,318 15% Due to increase in profit

Profit /(loss) for the period 725,219 837,410 112,192 15% -

Other comprehensive income - - -

Total comprehensive income 725,219 837,410 112,192 15% -

Distributable Profit

Net profit/(loss) as per profit or loss 725,219 837,410 112,192 15% -

Add/Less: Regulatory adjustment (154,578) (178,087) (23,509) 15% Due to increase in Profit

as per NRB Directive

Free profit/(loss) after regulatory adjustments 570,641 659,324 88,683 16%
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KEY INDICATORS

PARTICULARS INDICATORS FY 2016-17 FY 2017-18 FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21

1. Net Profit/Gross Income Percent 58.91% 62.18% 61.11%
2. Earnings Per Share (as per NAS 26) NPR 6.10 7.06 5.35
3. Market Value Per Share NPR 100 100 492
4. Price Earning Ratio Ratio 16.39 14.17 92.01
5. Dividend (including bonus) on Share Capital Percent - - -
6. Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent - - -
7. Interest Income/Loans and Advances & Investment Percent - 4.93% 6.48%
8. Staff Expenses/Total Operating Expenses Percent 61.76% 63.10% 59.83%
9. Interest Expenses/Total Deposits and Borrowings Percent 9.21% 9.21% 2.52%
10. Exchange Gain/Total Income Percent - - -
11. Total Cost/Total Revenue Percent 15.80% 11.19% 12.72%
12. Staff Bonus/Total Staff Expenses Percent 72.36% 4.82% 16.61%
13. Staff Cost Per Employee NPR 1,193,936 2,622,929 2,409,072
14. Net Profit Per Employee NPR 19,684,420 29,211,903 28,876,220
15. Total Credit/Deposits (CCD) Percent - 3.54% 9.63%
16. Total Operating Expenses/Total Assets Percent 0.50% 0.86% 0.61%
17. Capital Adequacy (On Risk Weighted Assets)

Core Capital Percent 421.84% 323.85% 305.26%

Total Capital Fund Percent 421.84% 323.97% 305.55%
18. Liquidity (CRR) Percent 2.90% 3.65% 623.25%
19. Net Profit / Total Loan Multiple - - -
20. Gross Non-Performing Credit/Total Credit Ratio - - -
21. Net Non-Performing Credit/Total Credit Ratio - - -
22. Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread Percent - - -
23. Return on Total Assets Percent 5.09% 6.06% 4.36%
24. Return on Equity Percent 5.23% 6.21% 4.65%
25. Book Net Worth NPR 106.57 113.62 112.01
26. Number of Shares No. 120,000,000 120,000,000 200,000,000

27. Number of Staff No. 34 29 29
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NOTES
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